7MWW

== IORI JOWVS}ND*

SIRIC GATH

Board Meeting Agenda
Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development Authority (FWPDA)
Tuesday, May 24, 2022 | 5:30 p.m.

Via Zoom (Remote Meeting Per Governor Inslee’s Proclamation 20-28.15)

Public Meeting Access:

Via internet:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82722023911?pwd=Zk5FTHNpZUNDSFkwWmVFdGw1SzV6QT09

Via phone:

+1 253 215 8782

Webinar ID: 827 2202 3911
Passcode: 917700

*9 to raise hand to speak

Meeting Agenda

. Call to order (5:30)
1. Roll Call
1l. Reports
A. Finance Reports
a. Treasurer’s Report
b. Profit & Loss YTD*
B. Executive Director’s Reports
a. Lobbying Memo and Report*
b. Justice Capital status update*
c. Renewable Nations status update*
Iv. Public Comment
V. Action Items (6:30 p.m. estimate)
1. Consent Agenda

a. Review the April 12, 2022* and April 26, 2022 meeting minutes. *
Proposed action: Approve the consent agenda.



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82722023911?pwd=Zk5FTHNpZUNDSFkwWmVFdGw1SzV6QT09

VI.

VII.

VIIL.

Motion to Rescind Glamping Resolution

A. Staff presentation

B. Board clarifying questions

C. Board discussion

D. Board liaison comments

Proposed action: Motion to rescind Resolution 22-12* (authorizing the Executive Director to
make a finding of the existence of an emergency, which the PDA faces with regard to
immediate completion of the glamping project.) and direct the Executive Director to assess
options and make a recommendation on a course of action at the June regular meeting.

Authorize contract with Dave Peterson*

A. Staff presentation

B. Board clarifying questions

C. Board discussion

D. Board liaison comments

Proposed Action: Motion to authorize the Executive Director to enter into a professional
services agreement with Dave Peterson, PE for capital project support not to exceed
$30,000.

Fort Worden Hospitality MOU*

A. Staff presentation

B. Board clarifying questions

C. Board discussion

D. Board liaison comments

Proposed Action: Motion to accept the modified terms of the MOU with Fort Worden
Hospitality addressing assignment of liabilities and assets in relationship to the Concession
Services Agreement transferring hospitality services from the FWPDA to Fort Worden
Hospitality

Executive Director Evaluation Process*

A. Staff presentation

B. Board clarifying questions

C. Board discussion

D. Board liaison comments

Proposed Action: Motion to direct the Chair to begin implementation of the process to
conduct an evaluation of the Executive Director’s performance

Public Comment
Next Board Meeting
Tuesday, June 28, 2022 at 5:30 p.m.

Executive Session—Potential litigation
No action will be taken.

Adjourn (8:00 p.m. estimate)
*Topic involves documents in agenda packet



#‘

Ve

—— PORT TOWNSEND ——
A HISTORIC GATHERING PLACE

To: FWPDA Board of Directors

From: David Timmons, Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development
Authority (FWPDA) Executive Director

Date: May 23, 2022
Subject: Agenda Item — lll. Reports A and B
All,

Item A. The report for the Treasurer will be staff presented at this meeting. John Begley is out of the
country at this time and not available. We did not have a committee meeting as well.

We have been in the process of opening our new accounts with Kitsap Bank and transferring funds
to the new accounts.

In addition, after reviewing new information on Makers Square and Glamping, | have begun
discussions with the bank on options to restructure our debt to conform more inline with our
current situation. We are discussing increasing our debt, but aligning payments with our future
cash flow from secured sources. Our initial conversations have been very positive. | will be
reviewing this with the Committee prior to introducing this to the Board.

This week is the final deadline for filing of the 2021 Annual Report. This is underway and we will be
able to submit within the required time. The Makers Square and related debt structure is more
complicated than we previously thought.

ltem B.

a. Our Lobbyist will be focusing on two critical items for the remainder of this year. Funding for
Building 203 and introduction of the Renewable Nations/Okinawa Institute Partnership to the
Governor’s office and our legislative delegation.

We are preparing a new scope for our efforts with next years’ legislative session. We should have
this for your consideration next meeting.

b. With regard to our Justice Capital submission, at this time, we are waiting for feedback on our
last meeting. At the last meeting we were informed our nomination was one of over 200
submitted. They are down to a list of 13 remaining for further consideration. We are one of the 13
still being reviewed. | was asked to submit some clarifications which has been done. They
anticipate we will be having a follow up meeting next month.



c. Attached is a very comprehensive overview of the proposed partnership that has developed
between the Renewable Nations Institute and the Okinawa Institute to pursue and implement the
joint US/Japan Climate action efforts. This new partnership has this effort resident here at Fort
Worden. More will follow shortly as they are progressing on joint meetings between the White
House and Japan’s Prime Minister’s Office.



7:33 PM FORT WORDEN PDA

05/20/22 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis January through April 2022
Jan-Apr.. Jan-Apr.. $Change % Change
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 Accomodations 102,229 242,885 (140,656) (58)%
4400 Food Sales Revenue 51,914 32,085 19,829 62%
4600 Other Revenues 70,171 63,688 6,483 10%
4900 PDA Grants/Donatio... 327,797 338,549 (10,753) (3)%
4950 HTC 354,345 (354,345) (100)%
Total Income 552,111 1,031,552 (479,441) (47)%
Cost of Goods Sold
Cost of Goods 12,021 16,496 (4,475) (27)%
Total COGS 12,021 16,496 (4,475) 27)%
Gross Profit 540,090 1,015,056 (474,966) 47)%
Expense
6010 Personnel Costs 340,795 366,526 (25,731) (7)%
7000 Repairs & Maintena... 16,883 5,119 11,763 230%
7100 Utilities 236,774 125,670 111,104 88%
8000 Contracts 126,374 553,959 (427,584) (7%
8500 Operating Expense 72,432 89,079 (16,647) (19)%
Total Expense 793,258 1,140,352 (347,094) (30)%
Net Ordinary Income (253,168) (125,297) (127,872) (102)%
Other Income/Expense
Other Expense 77,909 740 77,169 10,433%
Net Other Income (77,909) (740) (77,169) (10,433)%
Net Income (331,077) (126,036) (205,041) (163)%




—— PORT TOWNSEND ——
A HISTORIC GATHERING PLACE

To: FWPDA Board of Directors
From: Dziedzic Public Affairs
Date: May 13, 2022

Subject: Legislative update

Over the past month we have seen the final wrap up of the 2022 legislative session and also work
start to shift to interim activity. Governor Inslee ultimately signed 285 bills law, did a partial veto on
12 bills, and fully vetoed 6 bills. With 1,051 bills having been introduced during the 2022 session,
that means 28% of bills introduced were enacted into law. Now agencies and advocates start the
deep implementation work, which can include policy enactment, agency rulemaking, disbursement
of funds, and other implementation activities.

This is also the time of year when we start to look ahead to the next session. At this point in the
interim, there are two big areas of activity to watch — agency decision package development and
candidate campaign filings.

Decision Packages

State agencies are already doing the business of developing their decision packages, which they will
put forward to the Office of Financial Management in September for the Governor’s consideration
to include in his proposed budget that will be released in December. Decision packages are funding
requests that state agencies pull together that outline priorities they have identified that they
propose to the Governor in the hopes that they will be included in his proposed budget. Each state
agency has their own process for pulling together their decision packages, including varying levels of
stakeholder engagement.

Candidate Campaign Filings

Another big focus in the coming months will be on campaigns as the entire House and half of the
Senate is up for election. There has been a tidal wave of announcements from legislators who are
either not running again or are planning to run for another elected position. At this point, 26
current legislators have announced they do not plan to retain their current seat mostly because
they are retiring or pursuing other endeavors. The week of May 16™ is filing week, which means all
candidates must file for office by Friday, May 20™. Seeing these filings will provide a picture of what
the campaign season will look like and potential impacts on the makeup of the legislature heading
into the 2023 session.

-DZPA



General Update

After the 2022 legislative session adjourned on March 10™", Governor Inslee proceeded with the
process of signing bills into law. For bills that were vetoed either partially or completely, a veto
message is linked on that page with explanation for the veto. Bill signings were again mostly
done virtually without public participation or any of the normal fanfare and celebration. The
following is a summary of the bill action that was taken by the Governor:

o 285 bills were signed into law
e 12 hills were partially vetoed
e 6 bills were vetoed

A total of 1,051 bills were introduced during the 2022 session. With 297 bills being enacted,
that means about 28% of the bills introduced became law. An analysis from nonpartisan
legislative staff shows that 94.48 percent of bills that passed the legislature in 2022 were
bipartisan, meaning there was a ‘yes’ vote from at least one Republican Senator or
Representative.

In the coming months the legislature will turn to interim work where they hold meetings with
constituents and advocates, and committees convene periodically to hold work session and
start planning for the 2023 session. The Senate has produced a 2022 Interim Committee
Meeting Schedules & Work Plans document, which lays out what the various Senate
committees will be focusing on and when they will be meeting throughout the interim. We
have not seen a similar document produced for the House.

Electeds & Elections

Governor

The Washington Supreme Court unanimously rejected an effort to recall Democratic Gov. Jay
Inslee over his handling of the coronavirus pandemic. The justices upheld a Thurston County
Superior Court decision that the charges made against Inslee did not provide factually or legally
sufficient grounds to support a recall campaign. The recall petition was brought by a citizen
group called Washingtonians to Recall Insleee. It alleged that the governor’s orders limiting
activities and gatherings during the pandemic interfered with their rights.

Legislature

A big focus in the coming months will be on campaigns as the entire House and half of the
Senate is up for election. There has been a tidal wave of announcements from legislators who
are either are not running again or are planning to run for another elected position. For those
not running again, many are retiring or pursuing other endeavors. However, there have been a
few newer legislators who cite the long hours and the culture of the legislature as reasons for
not running again. Austin Jenkins did a piece regarding statements made by a few of the



https://www.governor.wa.gov/office-governor/official-actions/bill-action
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMjAzMjkuNTU2MjEyODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3NlbmF0ZWRlbW9jcmF0cy53YS5nb3Yvd3AtY29udGVudC91cGxvYWRzLzIwMjIvMDMvQmlwYXJ0aXNhbkJpbGxzMjAyMi54bHN4In0.Q-5FLaCkK8VpwYvY9D5NHkOxPSUE9eoBy-2D0d-5F74bicclk_s_1080362786_br_128810163262-2Dl&d=DwMFAA&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=YLexPys1CPF5YLalJQzZKu-U7XXk5PB_KYO8KytGqxY&s=1CVB9LnO5ih1nhHWz4OzD9oe3NPBdC7W_0BYfRx4T9Q&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMjAzMjkuNTU2MjEyODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3NlbmF0ZWRlbW9jcmF0cy53YS5nb3Yvd3AtY29udGVudC91cGxvYWRzLzIwMjIvMDMvQmlwYXJ0aXNhbkJpbGxzMjAyMi54bHN4In0.Q-5FLaCkK8VpwYvY9D5NHkOxPSUE9eoBy-2D0d-5F74bicclk_s_1080362786_br_128810163262-2Dl&d=DwMFAA&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=YLexPys1CPF5YLalJQzZKu-U7XXk5PB_KYO8KytGqxY&s=1CVB9LnO5ih1nhHWz4OzD9oe3NPBdC7W_0BYfRx4T9Q&e=
https://leg.wa.gov/Senate/Committees/Documents/Reports/BillsPassed/2022.pdf
https://leg.wa.gov/Senate/Committees/Documents/Reports/BillsPassed/2022.pdf
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/wa-supreme-court-unanimously-rejects-gov-inslee-recall-effort/
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/wa-supreme-court-unanimously-rejects-gov-inslee-recall-effort/
https://www.knkx.org/politics/2022-04-27/washington-lawmakers-of-color-announce-departures-one-calls-the-work-environment-toxic

departing legislators, including Rep Harris-Talley who wrote an op-ed raising her concerns with
the legislative work environment.

At this point, twenty six current legislators have announced they do not plan to retain their
current seat. Here is a breakdown of those who have officially announced they will not be

returning:

House Members:

Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.
Rep.

Bob McCaslin, R-4t" LD — Running for a county auditor position.
Matt Boehnke, R-8™" LD — Running for Senate seat

Brad Klippert, R-8™" LD — Running for Senate seat
Jeremie Dufault, R-15™ LD — Not seeking reelection
Vicki Kraft, R-17t" LD — Running for Congress

Larry Hoff, R-18t" LD — Not seeking reelection

Brandon Vick, R-18™ LD — Not seeking reelection

Laurie Dolan, D-22" LD — Not seeking reelection

Jesse Young, R-26™ LD — Running for Senate seat

Steve Kirby, D-29™ LD — Not seeking reelection

Jesse Johnson, D-30%" LD — Not seeking reelection
Eileen Cody, D-34™ LD — Not seeking reelection

Drew MacEwen, R-35" LD — Running for Senate seat
Noel Frame, D-36™" LD — Running for Senate seat
Kirsten Harris-Talley, D-37t™" LD — Not seeking reelection
Mike Sells, D-38t" LD — Not seeking reelection

Emily Wicks, D-38t" LD — Not seeking reeclection
Sharon Shewmake, D-42" LD — Running for Senate seat
Javier Valdez, D-46™ LD — Running for Senate seat

House Majority Leader Rep. Pat Sullivan, D-47™ LD — Not seeking reelection

Senate Members

Sen. Sharon Brown, R-8™" LD — Not seeking reelection

Sen. Tim Sheldon, 35%" LD — Not seeking reelection (while Sheldon is registered as a
Democrat, he has been caucusing with Republicans for nearly a decade)

Sen.
Sen.

Reuven Carlyle, D-36™ LD — Not seeking reelection
Keith Wagoner, R-39t" LD — Running for Secretary of State (because this Senate

seat isn’t up for election in 2022, if Wagoner were to win the Secretary of State
position, his seat would then be filled by an appointee)

Sen.
Sen.

David Frockt, D-46t" LD — Not seeking reelection
Mona Das, D-47t LD — Not seeking reelection

Some key upcoming dates related to elections include:

Monday, May 16" — candidate filing week opens (all candidates must file for office
by Friday, May 20t)

Tuesday, August 2" — August Primary Election

Tuesday, November 8t" — General Election


https://southseattleemerald.com/2022/03/29/kirsten-harris-talley-why-i-am-not-seeking-reelection/

Ballot Measures

In addition to campaigns for elected offices, this is also the time for ballot initiatives to be filed
for the November election and signature gathering to begin. Over 100 initiatives have been
filed, but only a few will likely gather enough signatures to make it to the ballot. Getting on this
November’s ballot will require 324,516 signatures from registered voters by 5pm on July 8.

Behavioral Health

988 Crisis Hotline

The Seattle Times did a piece highlighting the new 988 crisis hotline, which is launching this
July. The piece discusses the vision of the new 988 line will play in crisis response, the work that
has been done to date in preparing for it’s launch, and what work still remains to ensure there
is are adequate crisis response services available to connect people with when they call the 988
line. Preparing for the launch of the 988 hotline has been a significant body of work for the
legislature over the past two sessions.

In preparation for the launch of the 988 hotline nationwide in July, the U.S. Department of
Health & Human Services (HHS) awarded $105 Million in grant funding to 54 states and
territories, including about $382,000 for Washingington.

Children & Youth Behavioral Health

Results were recently released from the 2021 Healthy Youth Survey (HYS), a statewide survey of
young people focused on their health behaviors. The survey results suggest significant concerns
remain with the behavioral health of children and youth, though there were some signs of
improved health behaviors, including a decrease in substance use. While the full impact of the
pandemic is not yet fully understood, health officials hope the results of the HYS will help in
identifying the needs of students now and moving forward including the importance of a
continued focus on efforts in schools, families, and communities to support healthy youth
development. The HYS is distributed to students in 6th through 12th grade every two years,
providing representative data from Washington’s middle and high school students. Student
participation is voluntary and anonymous.

A recently released CDC report, which also examined behavioral health challenges and risk
behaviors among students across the country, found that 44% of high school students said they
felt persistently hopeless or sad during the past year. Thirty-seven percent reported they had
experienced poor mental health during the pandemic and 55% said they had experienced
emotional abuse by an adult at home.

Budget

Decision Packages

While session just recently ended, state agencies are already doing the business of developing
their decision packages (aka funding requests), which they will put forward to the Office of
Financial Management in September for the Governor’s consideration to include in his
proposed budget that will be released in December.


https://www.sos.wa.gov/elections/initiatives/initiatives.aspx?y=2022&t=p
https://www.sos.wa.gov/elections/initiatives/initiatives.aspx?y=2022&t=p
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/mental-health/a-new-crisis-hotline-988-is-coming-this-summer-is-washington-ready/?utm_source=marketingcloud&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=TSA_042422220742+988+is+coming.+Is+Washington+ready_4_24_2022&utm_term=Active%20subscriber
https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/WAHCA/bulletins/3145887
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMjAzMjIuNTUyODM1ODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5hc2toeXMubmV0LyJ9.RBDbBxMrhh0OqRssozjXnfodVppoHtYI3vFw-2DTBXcxM_s_592532683_br_128484141693-2Dl&d=DwMFAA&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=cBN13gw9wnfCMeLK-zEps5Cd0G4ZFjYR4vYoy0rhXSk&s=5nXUVSTVmojzTxC6LBaNSAEe6pfd3d_w4wNQHbG5DEQ&e=
https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/WAHCA/bulletins/30ff697
https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/WAHCA/bulletins/30ff697
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__stateofreform.us9.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Df695b5b2b1984d959eb6a7659-26id-3Ddb24349e7e-26e-3D349f35f385&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=58EHEmUo5dCGM1YLC6dGeYS11IM57tAuuDBoaAJ6KQQ&s=ymJqD5hgRTFZwHvSkQlp9zxvC9zp4lk7l8vzn4wV3Uo&e=

Washington’s Credit Rating

Citing “strong fiscal governance” and “strong fiscal management practices,” the nation’s top
credit rating agencies agree that the work of Washington’s budget writers should result in the
state maintaining its strong credit ratings. The credit rating agencies pointed to Washington’s
fiscal management, forecasting system, and high budget reserves among the reasons for their
decision to award the state strong credit ratings in their latest assessments.

Capital Gains

There is significant activity regarding the capital gains tax that was passed during the 2021
session. Revenue from the tax will be used to fund early learning priorities, school construction,
and other education-related items. The capital gains tax legislation that passed (SB 5096)
created a 7% tax on capital gains profits greater than $250,000 in a year. The law exempted
profits from the sale of real estate, retirement funds, small business, and farms. As a result, this
tax will be paid by only 0.2% of Washington taxpayers, primarily from profits from the sale of
stocks and bonds.

The current activity around the tax falls into two buckets — a court case that is attempting to
rule the tax unconstitutional, and a ballot initiative that is attempting to overturn the tax on the
November 2022 ballot.

Court Case

On March 1, Douglas County Superior Court Judge Brian Huber ruled the capital gains
tax initiated by SB 5096 of 2021 unconstitutional. Proponents of the capital gains tax
have stated that the ruling at this level was anticipated and is the first step in a long
legal journey that will eventually end up at the Washington Supreme Court. Attorney
General Bob Ferguson has filed an appeal on behalf of the state asking the state
Supreme Court to review the Douglas County Court decision. Crosscut ran a helpful
piece summarizing the key issues.

At a recent meeting of the Economic & Revenue Forecast Council (ERFC), Rep. Ed Orcutt,
an opponent of the capital gains tax, requested that the capital gains tax not be included
in the revenue forecast given the Douglas County Court’s ruling. Sen. Christine Rolfes,
Rep. Ormsby, the Governor’s budget director, and several other members of the ERFC
voted ‘no’ arguing that the tax’s fate was still unknown given it is expected to be
considered by the State’s Supreme Court. Therefore the capital gains tax will continue to
be considered in the ERFC’s revenue forecasts.

Initiative 1929

Opponents of the capital gains tax have filed an initiative (I-1929), which seeks to repeal
the capital gains tax passed by the legislature. If passed, 1-1929 would repeal the capital
gains tax and therefore eliminate the estimated $500 million a year in revenue that the
legislature has slated to fund early learning and education-related items. In order to get
on the ballot, the people running the intiative will need to gather at least 324,516
sighatures from registered voters by 5pm on July 8.


https://senatedemocrats.wa.gov/blog/2022/04/26/democrats-react-to-washingtons-elite-credit-rating/
https://www.kpq.com/ag-ferguson-appealing-douglas-county-court-decision-striking-down-capital-gains-tax-to-state-supreme-court/
https://crosscut.com/politics/2022/03/wa-capital-gains-tax-ruled-unconstitutional-trial-judge
https://crosscut.com/politics/2022/03/wa-capital-gains-tax-ruled-unconstitutional-trial-judge

Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

Governor Inslee signed Executive Order 22-04, which requires all state agencies to develop a
Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Strategic Action Plan. Following a roundtable discussion, Inslee
signed the Executive Order (EO) along with Dr. Karen Johnson, director of the Office of Equity,
and community and state agency leaders who helped co-create the plan and playbook. The EO
requires state agencies and the Office of Equity to partner with communities to set metrics for
measuring progress, conduct equity impact reviews, develop PEAR Strategic Action Plans, and
ensure transparency through regular reporting mechanisms. The Office of Equity will create an
online dashboard to publish statewide and agency-specific plans, performance measures and
outcomes and submit an annual report to the governor and Legislature due Oct. 31, beginning
in 2022. The Office of Equity co-created the state’s PEAR Plan & Playbook with community
members, state employees, partners across many sectors, and members of all branches of state
government.

Early Learning

The National Institute for Early Education Research (NIEER) recently published the 2021 State of
Preschool Yearbook, which shows that Washington was one of only a few states to increase
preschool enrollment and spending during the 2020-2021 school year. The annual report, which
focused on the first school year fully impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, shows that state
funding for preschool programs declined nationally for the first time since 2014, and enrollment
decreased in almost every state — with Washington being an exception.

Education

A new report shows that nearly half of public school teachers in the U.S. reported at least one
student during the 2020-21 school year who was enrolled but never showed up for class.

The report, published by the Government Accountability Office, is part of the federal
government’s ongoing efforts to understand how the pandemic affected the country’s public
school system. The data was pulled from a national representative survey of public school
teachers that the GAO contracted Gallup to conduct about their experiences during the 2020-
21 school year.

The Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) is proposing changes to its student
absence rules in support of the implementation of HB 1834 - Concerning student excused
absences for mental health reasons. OSPI is seeking public comment on the proposed changes.
The proposed rule language can be found here and the CR-102 (Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking) can be found here. OSPI will hold a virtual public hearing on May 24 at 3pm to
receive comments about the proposed rules changes (registration link here).

Environment

Attorney General Bob Ferguson announced the filing of a lawsuit against Postmaster General
Louis DeJoy and the U.S. Postal Service asserting that they violated federal environmental law
when deciding in February to replace up to 165,000 vehicles with primarily gas powered models
rather than making a switch to electric vehicles. The lawsuit was filed in US District Court for the
Norther District of California and 15 other states, two cities and one air quality management
district joined the lawsuit.



https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-04%20-%20Implementing%20PEAR%20%28tmp%29.pdf
https://www.governor.wa.gov/news-media/inslee-tees-next-steps-statewide-equity-efforts-new-executive-order
https://www.governor.wa.gov/news-media/inslee-tees-next-steps-statewide-equity-efforts-new-executive-order
https://www.governor.wa.gov/news-media/inslee-tees-next-steps-statewide-equity-efforts-new-executive-order
https://nieer.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/YB2021_Full_Report.pdf
https://nieer.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/YB2021_Full_Report.pdf
https://www.usnews.com/news/education-news/articles/2022-04-20/nearly-half-of-teachers-had-students-who-never-showed-up-to-class-last-year-report
https://www.usnews.com/news/education-news/articles/2022-04-20/nearly-half-of-teachers-had-students-who-never-showed-up-to-class-last-year-report
https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-22-104581.pdf
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com_-3Furl-3Dhttps-2525253A-2525252F-2525252Flawfilesext.leg.wa.gov-2525252Fbiennium-2525252F2021-2D22-2525252FPdf-2525252FBills-2525252FSession-2525252520Laws-2525252FHouse-2525252F1834.SL.pdf-2525253Fq-2525253D20220330115617-26data-3D04-2525257C01-2525257Cbridget.underdahl-25252540k12.wa.us-2525257C82e822b41afe496e5a6408da18f14dab-2525257Cb2fe5ccf10a546feae45a0267412af7a-2525257C0-2525257C0-2525257C637849721909318357-2525257CUnknown-2525257CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0-2525253D-2525257C3000-26sdata-3DGnLv4hPPDMk5DaT3WP6KmmPKswOMeNw8qdVqxUfpB9E-2525253D-26reserved-3D0&d=DwMGaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=7CGJ98Qt-FKc6NGHue5uL4BOD6qQG35xsk1YwWD9fN0&s=quPTpBH_Vo16-l771i18sCc-Un3iSyp42XejXurjcNY&e=
https://www.k12.wa.us/sites/default/files/public/profpractices/adminresources/rulesprocess/ProposedLanguageAndHearingInfo_392-401-020.pdf
https://www.k12.wa.us/sites/default/files/public/profpractices/adminresources/rulesprocess/WSR-22-09-084.pdf
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZEufuGtqj0qGdEv_cpZbKJQagM5NR6SZsn9
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.atg.wa.gov_news_news-2Dreleases_ag-2Dferguson-2Dfiles-2Dlawsuit-2Dagainst-2Dpostmaster-2Ddejoy-2Dviolating-2Dbedrock&d=DwMF-g&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=Mj6yBo6lbWyYxEdgB_uo2Zz3NcFPR_QIVv-0ROCJs-8&s=D88DuHoXMc7QzxLo1xiQJAm7nX2mkIfyMxuFhMY3xNU&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.seattletimes.com_seattle-2Dnews_environment_wa-2Dother-2Dstates-2Dsue-2Du-2Ds-2Dpostal-2Dservice-2Dover-2Dnew-2Dgas-2Dpowered-2Ddelivery-2Dfleet_&d=DwMF-g&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=Mj6yBo6lbWyYxEdgB_uo2Zz3NcFPR_QIVv-0ROCJs-8&s=hPuyh6aqTQgyA-A5ghN6qdOUWP05p08PTbltXE5OAtU&e=

Health Care

Agency Updates

Pam MacEwan, CEO of the Washington Health Benefit Exchange (Exchange), announced that
she will be stepping down from guiding the state’s health insurance marketplace, Washington
Healthplanfinder, an organization she has served for nearly 10 years. She has held the role of
CEO for more than six years. The Exchange Board unanimously named current Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) Jim Crawford as interim CEO, effective June 10, 2022 when MacEwan officially
retires.

The Seattle Times did a piece discussing claims of staff mistreatment and inappropriate and
racist surs made by Insurance Commissioner Mike Kreidler. Commissioner Kreidler released a
statement in response to the piece apologizing for any pain caused by his actions.

Immunizations

The Washington State Board of Health (SBOH) has voted not to include COVID-19 in the state’s
immunization requirements for school entry at this time. The Board of Health made the
decision in a unanimous vote. They cited a lack of data for school-aged kids and potentially
unpredictable social impacts for imposing a requirement at this time. The Department of Health
stated their support for the recommendation of the SBOH’s technical advisory group. During
the discussion, it was made clear that both DOH and SBOH continue to support COVID-19
vaccines as being safe and effective, and particularly protective against severe illness,
hospitalization, and death.

Reproductive Health

Planned Parenthood clinics in Washington and Oregon have stated they are preparing for a
potential surge in patients seeking abortions and reproductive care, as Republican-led states
push to restrict or ban abortion. For example, Idaho recently passed a law that bans abortions
after 6 weeks of pregnancy and allows family members of a woman who gets an abortion, or of
the potential father, to sue the abortion provider. The Idaho law is modeled after a similar
Texas law that the U.S. Supreme Court has let stand. The Idaho Supreme Court has halted the
law while it considers a lawsuit filed by Planned Parenthood.

Housing & Homelessness

The Edmonds city council is considering a new ordinance that would criminalize the refusal of
services by homeless individuals and could be punishable with a $1,000 fine and imprisonment
of up to 90 days. According to city documents, if passed, the new ordinance would create a new
enforcement mechanism when an unhoused individual unlawfully occupies public property. It is
believed the ordinance would not be enforceable and in violation of the Martin v. Boise
decision which states that unless services are provided and accessible, a city may not impose
penalties for people finding refuge in public spaces.

The Washington State Department of Commerce has announced $17.5 million in funding for 26
projects that will support the development of nearly 2,100 affordable housing units throughout
the state. Funds will lower the effective cost of development by about $8,000 for each housing
unit. The Connecting Housing to Infrastructure program (CHIP) awards prioritized projects that


https://www.wahbexchange.org/washington-health-benefit-exchange-ceo-pam-macewan-announces-upcoming-retirement/
https://www.wahbexchange.org/washington-health-benefit-exchange-names-jim-crawford-interim-ceo/
https://www.wahbexchange.org/washington-health-benefit-exchange-names-jim-crawford-interim-ceo/
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/times-watchdog/wa-insurance-chief-mike-kreidler-accused-of-using-racist-slurs-staff-allege-mistreatment/
https://www.insurance.wa.gov/news/kreidler-statement-media-report-language-use-and-mistreatment-staff?utm_content=&utm_medium=email&utm_name=&utm_source=govdelivery&utm_term=
https://doh.wa.gov/newsroom/statement-washington-state-department-health-5
https://doh.wa.gov/newsroom/statement-washington-state-department-health-5
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/politics/wa-planned-parenthood-clinics-prepare-for-surge-as-idaho-other-states-restrict-abortion/?utm_source=marketingcloud&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=TSA_040922014505+WA+Planned+Parenthood+prepares+for+potential+surge+in+patient+care_4_8_2022&utm_term=Active%20subscriber
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/politics/wa-planned-parenthood-clinics-prepare-for-surge-as-idaho-other-states-restrict-abortion/?utm_source=marketingcloud&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=TSA_040922014505+WA+Planned+Parenthood+prepares+for+potential+surge+in+patient+care_4_8_2022&utm_term=Active%20subscriber
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.kiro7.com_news_local_edmonds-2Dcity-2Dcouncil-2Dconsiders-2Dfining-2Djailing-2Dhouseless-2Dpeople-2Dwho-2Drefuse-2Dhelp_IW267SGHGBHJ3FZCCHWIJ6GDWU_&d=DwMF-g&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=Mj6yBo6lbWyYxEdgB_uo2Zz3NcFPR_QIVv-0ROCJs-8&s=JaBhfWGoaNYP-4CMIQEuSw_KXHAE3dD_YtZRZACeXUA&e=
https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/WADOC/bulletins/314fc51

include home ownership units as part of a community land trust, offering housing that is
affordable in perpetuity. Commerce awarded funding to projects in 11 counties. They were
selected from 44 applications received in round two, including those not funded in round one,
and representing over $40 million in application requests.

A recent Seattle Times article highlights a struggle between the Low-Income Housing Institute
and the new Regional Homelessness Authority over tiny homes in Rainier Beach. There are 40
tiny homes that are currently sitting empty after being built by the Low-Income Housing
Institute and the operating funding being denied by the Regional Homelessness Authority. The
tiny home village needs about $700,000 to cover security, utilities, staffing for the kitchen and
case services. The Low-Income Housing Institute mentioned trying to open the tiny home
village in May with private donations.

Long Term Care

A federal judge has dismissed a class action lawsuit that was filed by opponents of a mandatory
payroll premium to fund Washington state’s recently delayed long-term care program, saying
the court did not have jurisdiction since it was a state tax. The ruling is in response to the
November lawsuit filed on behalf of three businesses in the state and six individuals who
claimed that the long-term care program — known as the WA Cares Fund — violates a federal
law that forbids the state from passing any law that requires employees to participate in a plan
that provides sickness or medical benefits.

Opioids & Other Substance Use Disorder

New data shows that deaths from drug overdoses continue to increase for Washington
residents. Provisional data as of April 4 show drug-related overdose deaths surpassed 2,000 in
2021, a more than 66 percent increase compared to 2019. Overdose deaths are increasing
across all groups, and more than half of these deaths are due to fentanyl.

Outdoor Rec

The Washington State Parks and Recreation Commission announced the appointment of Diana
Dupuis as the agency’s new director. Dupuis will be the first female director since the agency
was established more than 100 years ago.

A recent survey by the Black Washingtonians Workgroup on Outdoor Recreation found fewer
than 1.5% of State Parks visitors are Black. Some barriers included safety concerns, a lack of
access to transportation, and access to outdoor equipment, which can be expensive. The 12-
member workgroup surveyed Black Washingtonians about these barriers to participating in
outdoor recreation. In addition, the group has compiled potential solutions to lower those
barriers.

Tobacco & E-Cigarettes

The Food and Drug Administration has announced a plan to ban sales of menthol-flavored
cigarettes in the United States, a measure many public health experts hailed as the
government’s most meaningful action in more than a decade of tobacco control efforts.
The ban would most likely have the deepest impact on Black smokers, nearly 85 percent of



https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.seattletimes.com_seattle-2Dnews_politics_its-2Da-2Dfeud-2Dbrand-2Dnew-2Dhomeless-2Dshelter-2Dsits-2Dempty-2Das-2Dleaders-2Dsquabble_&d=DwMF-g&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=Mj6yBo6lbWyYxEdgB_uo2Zz3NcFPR_QIVv-0ROCJs-8&s=HPu2C0xVJxU9sPXe7LeeENqG2eO5-q69xTh2FKC5E2E&e=
https://www.theolympian.com/news/business/article260818247.html
https://doh.wa.gov/newsroom/overdose-deaths-washington-top-2000-2021-and-continue-rise
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lnks.gd_l_eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMjA0MTIuNTYzMTcyOTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2RvaC53YS5nb3Yvc2l0ZXMvZGVmYXVsdC9maWxlcy8yMDIyLTAyL3dhX2xoal9xdWFydGVybHlfcmVwb3J0XzE4XzFfMl9wdWIuaHRtbD91aWQ9NjI0NjBkNjQ4NjM2MCJ9.LfbXkU14Ih8bGQFp-5FLjpbiFB5DjETcb39BsSBB2eX4Q_s_690743763_br_129723724339-2Dl&d=DwMFAA&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=sK8n5xabOSRknapcmAoUg8CiFU82-zuwI5Gc9nDbCyE&s=6D4SxcBSlKLUmfjluwQo7WXTUfIWSexUOffMN1mMJ68&e=
https://www.parks.wa.gov/CivicAlerts.aspx?AID=779
https://www.kuow.org/stories/report-to-washington-state-parks-commission-shows-barriers-for-black-community-outdoors
https://www.kuow.org/stories/report-to-washington-state-parks-commission-shows-barriers-for-black-community-outdoors
https://www.parks.wa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/18829/Presentation-R-Bembry_
https://www.parks.wa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/18829/Presentation-R-Bembry_
https://www.nytimes.com/2022/04/28/health/menthol-ban-fda.html?campaign_id=9&emc=edit_nn_20220429&instance_id=59910&nl=the-morning&regi_id=144182246&segment_id=90730&te=1&user_id=53256d5b2291c116a13b327dd2f11e0f
https://www.nytimes.com/2022/04/28/health/menthol-ban-fda.html?campaign_id=9&emc=edit_nn_20220429&instance_id=59910&nl=the-morning&regi_id=144182246&segment_id=90730&te=1&user_id=53256d5b2291c116a13b327dd2f11e0f
https://int.nyt.com/data/documenttools/menthol-cigarette-proposed-rule/3840ce930da99624/full.pdf

whom use menthol cigarettes, compared with 29 percent of white smokers, according to a
government survey. If effective in reducing smoking, the ban could significantly diminish the
burden of chronic disease and limit the number of lives cut short by one of the most hazardous
legal products available.

Juul Labs, the e-cigarette manufacturing company, will pay $22.5 million to settle a lawsuit
brought by Washington state that alleged it intentionally targeted teenagers with its products,
while deceiving consumers about the addictiveness of its vaping products. Attorney General
Bob Ferguson said that the company “fueled a staggering rise in vaping use” that “reversed
decades of progress in fighting youth nicotine addiction.” Under the terms of the

settlement Juul admits no wrongdoing or liability, and says it settled “for the purpose of
compromising” and to avoid further litigation. Juul must also stop all advertising that appeals to
youth and stop most social media advertising, with limited exceptions. It can continue to run
Twitter, YouTube and LinkedIn ads that feature adults who were habitual cigarette smokers
giving testimony about Juul products.

Transportation

A recent Seattle Times article highlights the Sound Transit’s board of directors vote to
completely change its fare enforcement practices. The overhaul of the fare system moves
forward with a policy that takes enforcement out of hands of security, increases the number of
warnings to riders and makes it less likely that those who were found to have not paid their fair
will end of in civil court. It also removes the possibility of suspension from the system for
nonpayment and provide riders with an appeals process for enforcement action taken against
them. The new policies take effect September 17",



https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/e-cigarette-giant-juul-to-pay-wa-22-5-million-to-settle-deceptive-advertising-lawsuit/?utm_source=marketingcloud&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=BNA_041322181937+Juul+to+pay+WA+%2422.5+million+to+settle+deceptive+advertising+lawsuit_4_13_2022&utm_term=Active%20subscriber
https://agportal-s3bucket.s3.amazonaws.com/uploadedfiles/Another/News/Press_Releases/3404_001.pdf
https://agportal-s3bucket.s3.amazonaws.com/uploadedfiles/Another/News/Press_Releases/3404_001.pdf
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.seattletimes.com_seattle-2Dnews_transportation_sound-2Dtransit-2Deases-2Dfare-2Denforcement-2Damid-2Dequity-2Dconcerns_&d=DwMF-g&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=9CvkFtS6JNLm0gInAxXLMS1YDBLxYXHrEWpaXnSkn5YFbdStg-xmdv1f5Jt2Al1w&m=Mj6yBo6lbWyYxEdgB_uo2Zz3NcFPR_QIVv-0ROCJs-8&s=nbyBHmkoNFbbCtqwyLpxlErqivXzKW9_L0BwIdUogW0&e=

\
ForyWorden'State Park, Aerial View (Photo Credit: © Nick Reid 2014)

The Renewable Nations Institute

at

Fort Worden

CENTER FOR U.S.-JAPAN COOPERATION ON ENERGY AND CLIMATE

A proposed Technical Support Unit (TSU) for the Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership

The Renewable Nations Institute (Institute) and the Fort Worden Public Development Authority
(FWPDA) entered a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated 28 January 2022 to assess the
viability of the Institute to become a contributing resident partner of the Lifelong Learning
Center at Fort Worden State Park (Port Townsend, Washington).

The Institute proposes to develop a Technical Support Unit (TSU) in service to the Japan-U.S.
Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP). The JUCEP is co-chaired by the United States Department of
State (DOS) and Ministry of Economy, Trade, and Industry (METI) of the Government of Japan.

In response to the JUCEP’s call for urgent climate action, this Preliminary Assessment (Part 1)
offers a Concept Narrative for the proposed TSU to launch with a cohort of 100 paid Summer
Youth Employment Training (SYETP) interns in New York City (July 2022 - August 2022) and 100
paid resident Work-Learning-Service interns at Fort Worden (August 2022 - July 2023).

Preliminary Assessment: Part 1, Concept Narrative

20 May 2022

b

RENEWABLE NATIONS
INSTITUTE

Note: This Preliminary Assessment is available for public review as specified in The Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development Authority

Public Records Act Administrative Policy (dated 26 May 2021), and in compliance with the State of Washington Public Records Act (PRA) of 1972.



Foreword

Point Wilson Lighthouse, Fort Worden State Park, Port Townsend, WA (Photo Credit: © Kevin McNeal 2014-2015)

Part 1, Concept Narrative, describes an initiative to establish a proposed Technical Support Unit —
the Center for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate — at Fort Worden State Park in

service to the Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP).

— Richard Lukens, Vice President & Managing Manager, Renewable Nations L3C

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf Page 2 of 29



A\ 4

RENEWABLE NATIONS
INSTITUTE

16 May 2022

Board of Directors

Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development Authority (FWPDA)
C/0 David Timmons, Executive Director

210 Battery Way, Port Townsend, WA 98368

Re: Preliminary Assessment

Mr. David Timmons,

Please accept this Preliminary Assessment: Part 1, Concept Narrative, in partial fulfillment of the Memorandum of Understanding by and
between the FWPDA and the Renewable Nations Institute.

Part 1, Concept Narrative, provides an opportunity for our leadership teams to review the opportunity for the Institute, in collaboration with the
Okinawa Institute of Science and Technology Foundation (OIST Foundation), to establish a proposed Technical Support Unit (TSU) — the Center
for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate (Center) — in service to the Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP).

The opportunity has emerged since the signing of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) by and between the FWPDA and the Institute on 28
January 2022.

Subsequently, the concept has been embraced by representatives of the Government of Japan and consortium partners of the Institute. The
Institute intends to open dialogue with various JUCEP stakeholders within the U.S. Government.

In the context of this opportunity that the Preliminary Assessment: Part 1, Concept Narrative, is a planning document pursuant to the following
objectives:

1.  Execute a voluntary public-private partnership agreement with the JUCEP;
2. Initiate an “on-boarding” process for key enabling consortium partners of the Institute; and

3.  Secure a comprehensive planning grant and initial funding for a proof-of-concept pilot program, including a Summer Youth
Employment Program (SYEP) in New York City and Work-Learning-Service internship program in-residence at Fort Worden.

While this Preliminary Assessment: Part 1, Concept Narrative, is under review by the Board of Directors of the FWPDA and other stakeholders,
including representatives of the JUCEP, the Institute will continue to work in good-faith to execute this plan in close cooperation with the FWPDA
management team and the OIST Foundation.

Respectfully submitted,

(e 5. S —

Allan E. Baer
President and CEO
The Renewable Nations Institute

abaer@renewablenations.nyc
Mobile: 802.279.7250

Project website: http://www.renewablenations.info

PS: This Preliminary Assessment is intended for stakeholder review.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf Page 3 of 29


mailto:abaer@renewablenations.nyc
http://www.renewablenations.info/

Table of Contents

Fort Worden State Park, Building 225 (Photo Credit: FWPDA) s

The Renewable Nations Institute seeks to address the workforce pipeline challenge in the energy
services sector by developing an education-based, energy services workforce globally in greater

numbers and years earlier than currently feasible.

— John Cromwell, Vice President, Renewable Nations Institute

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf Page 4 of 29



FOrEWOId ... . e e,

EXECULIVE SUMMaAIY . ... e e e e

Section 1: Concept Narrative . .......... ... i e

Section 1.1: Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP) .......... ... ... . .o iiiiiiiiinnennnn.
Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP) (p. 9); JUCEP National Task Force by Country (p. 10);
Accelerating Climate Action (p. 10)

Section 1.2: Center for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on EnergyandClimate .. ..........................
Concept Paper for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate (p. 11); Organizational Structure (p. 12);
Management Structure (p. 12); Fort Worden Integrated Partner Economy (p. 12);

Center Stakeholder Diagram (p. 13)

Section 1.3: Focal Areasin Service tothe JUCEP . . . ... ... ... ittt
Global Investments in the Energy Transition (p. 14); Impact of the Center Climate Finance Research Agenda (p. 14);
Supply-side Energy Workforce Transformation (p. 15); Demand-side Energy Workforce Transformation (p. 15);

Challenges to Energy Workforce Transition (p. 15)

Section 1.4: Educational Service - Delivery Modeland Pedagogy ................. ... .cooviionn..
Service-Learning, Work-Learning-Service Internships (p. 16); Pedagogical Framework (p. 16);
Productivity-Centered Service-Learning and Education for Sustainability in the K-12 Education Sector (p. 17);
K-12 Middle School Service-Learning Program (p. 17); The Green Earth Corps (GEC) (p. 18);

Peer-Reviewed Research, Middle-Schoolers Out-to-Save the World (p. 18);

Peer-Reviewed Research, Global Challenge Award (p. 18)

Section 1.5: Integrated Service-Learning / Work-Learning-Service Program ........................
Secondary and Post-Secondary GEC Program Integration (p. 19); Service-Learning Curriculum (p. 20);
Summary of Curriculum Goals and Objectives (p. 20); GEC Targeted Energy Reductions (p 21);
Proposed Proof-of-Concept Pilot Project (p. 22); Projected Outcomes of the SYEP Project (p. 22);
SYEP Objectives (p. 22); Integration with Work-Learning-Service Cohort at Fort Worden (p. 22);
Service-Learning Project Flow Diagram (p. 23); National Program Replication (p. 24);
Work-Learning-Service at Fort Worden (p. 25); Work-Learning-Service Curriculum (p. 25);
Industry Assessment Centers (IACs) Integration (p. 26); IACs Avoided Cost Savings Performance Data (p. 27);

Renewable Nations Program-Related Revenue Model (p. 27); Service-Learning Project Flow Diagram (p. 28)

Contact Information

Pg.3

Pg. 7

Pgs. 8-12

Pgs. 9-10

Pgs. 11-13

Pgs. 14-15

Pgs. 16-18

Pgs. 19-28

Pg. 29

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 5 of 29



Executive Summary

v 7 i —

S ——— /47‘9'"_'.',-—*',/"" - i e 3

Fort Worden State Park ,Officers Row (Photo Credit: FWPDA)

The Renewable Nations Institute offers proven, quality educational programs that reflect a real and
bold vision that millions of young leaders can influence consumers to make dramatic reductions of
energy consumption and related CO2 and GHG emissions in their communities aided by energy

survey technology and simulation software coupled with artificial intelligence (Al).

— Allan E. Baer, President, Renewable Nations Institute

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf Page 6 of 29



This Preliminary Assessment: Part 1, Concept Narrative, is a first draft of the
proposed activities of the Renewable Nations Institute at Fort Worden. The
primary objectives of this document are to: engage in planning with the Fort
Worden stakeholder community; on-board consortium members of the
Institute; and open dialogue with representatives of the U.S.-Japan Clean
Energy Partnership (JUCEP), as the proposed Center is intended to serve as
a Technical Support Unit (TSU) of the JUCEP.

A revision of this document will be released after June 30, 2022, along with
a completed Preliminary Assessment identifying committed consortium
members, site requirements at Fort Worden, program capital and operating
budgets, and supplemental services to the JUCEP.

Section 1.1 of the Concept Narrative describes the context from which the
JUCEP emerged: the U.S.-Japan Summit Meeting between President Joseph
R. Biden, Jr. and Prime Minister Suga Yoshihide on April 16, 2021. The
Summit launched the “U.S.-Japan Global Partnership for a New Era,” a
renewed U.S.-Japan Alliance featuring two new integrated initiatives: the
U.S.-Japan Climate Partnership and the Competitiveness and Resilience
(CoRe) Partnership.

The JUCEP, co-chaired by the United States Department of State (DOS) and
the Ministry of Economy, Trade, and Industry (METI) of Japan, is tasked with
ensuring that Japan and the U.S. will lead the world in the transition to a
“sustainable, inclusive, healthy, green global economic recovery.”

Following the Summit and JUCEP meetings, the U.S.-Japan Council and the
Okinawa Institute of Science and Technology Foundation (OIST Foundation)
initiated a public webinar series on ”Japan’s and the United States’ Quest to
Achieve a Carbon-Free Power Sector,” as described in Section 1.2,
sponsored by the Cabinet Office of Japan.

The series featured distinguished panelists, including:

e Dr. Steven Chu, Nobel Laureate in Physics (1997) and former U.S.
Secretary of Energy (January 2009-April 2013), and William R. Kenan Jr.
Professor of Molecular and Cellular Physiology at Stanford University
Medical School; and

e Mr. Tatsuya Terazawa, Chairman & CEO of the Institute of Energy
Economics Japan (IEEJ), Senior Specially Professor at the Tokyo
University of Science, former Vice-Minister for International Affairs at
the Ministry of Economy, Trade, and Industry (METI) of Japan, and
Executive Secretary to former Prime Minister Yoshihiko Noda.

Emerging from the series of webinars was the identification of the need for
a permanent bilateral technical support unit (TSU) to the Japan-U.S. Clean
Energy Partnership (JUCEP). On April 29, 2022, at an event co-hosted by
Honorable H.E. Mikio Mori, Ambassador and Consul General of Japan in
New York, the President of the Renewable Nations Institute announced the
intent of the Institute, in collaboration with the OIST Foundation, to enter a
voluntary public-private partnership with the JUCEP to develop the
proposed Center at Fort Worden to advance the JUCEP mission.

Section 1.3 highlights the urgent need for a projected investment of USD
130 trillion in EERE technologies through 2050 to limit median global
temperature rise to below 1.5°C to 2°C to prevent irreversible, catastrophic
climate change. The Section also states the Center’s intent to stimulate USD
1 trillion in annual investments in EERE projects worldwide.

Section 1.3 also highlights the urgent need for job growth in the supply-side
clean energy sector (100 million jobs by 2050) and job growth in the
demand-side energy sector (24.3 million jobs by 2050). The global education
sector is currently not prepared to meet this growth challenge.

Section 1.4 describes the Institute’s efforts to address the energy services
workforce pipeline challenge by developing a Service-Learning and Work-
Learning-Service “education-based workforce” and replicating the proven,
and  Work-
Learning-Service pedagogies of the Institute globally in collaboration with
the United Nations and the JUCEP.

peer-reviewed “Productivity-Centered”  Service-Learning

The Institute proposes to launch an integrated secondary and post-
secondary education workforce program at Fort Worden to expand the
professional, certified energy efficiency workforce globally in greater
numbers and years earlier than currently feasible.

The program will attract, motivate, and retain youth — targeting minority
youth in compliance with U.S. federal Justice40 objectives — for energy
efficiency education and careers by putting advanced energy data
collection, modeling, and simulation tools in the hands of teachers,
students, and interns to create meaningful models of energy consumption,
and to help consumers achieve electricity cost savings and reduce carbon
dioxide (CO2) emissions from building power loads.

Two cohorts of student interns will work in tandem throughout the year to
master the required skills for pre-audit benchmarking of building power
loads, including HVAC systems, interior and exterior lighting, refrigeration
and water heating, and power plug and process loads (PPLs), and produce
investment-grade energy efficiency project proposals in collaboration with
licensed mechanical, electrical, and plumbing engineers (MEPs) serving as
adjunct faculty of the Institute and its academic partners.

The key to successfully launching the integrated Service-Learning and Work-
Learning-Service programs is the development of an emerging technology
platform utilizing the EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™ App developed by
Empowering Equity, a women, minority, and disabled-veteran owned
business enterprise. The EMPEQ tool deploys Al (artificial intelligence) to
remove the barrier to early entry in the energy efficiency workforce by
eliminating the need for vast reservoirs of knowledge and experience to
conduct the initial audit phase of an energy efficiency retrofit project.

Participating U.S. Department of Industrial Assessment Centers (IACs) will
be integrated into the Work-Learning-Service internship program. IACs have
conducted over 19,984 energy efficiency assessments with more than
149,618 associated recommendations, resulting in total lifecycle avoided
energy cost savings of $47.4 billion for U.S. industry clients.

The Institute will advance the IACs model by developing investment-grade
EERE proposals, providing turnkey construction and project financing in
partnership with private sector energy services companies (ECSOs) and
climate finance partners, and generating program-related revenue based
upon an annual fee of 5% of the verified annual avoided energy cost

savings.

Within three to five years of Center operations, the self-generating revenue
model of the Institute will achieve financial sustainability for the Center, full
scholarships for student interns at the Center, and private sector subsidies
for Center technical support services to the JUCEP.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 7 of 29



Section 1:
Concept Narrative

U.S.-Japan Bilateral Summit

Together we pledge to demonstrate that free and democratic nations, working together, are able
to address the global threats from COVID-19 and climate change while resisting challenges to the

free and open rules-based international order.

— President Joseph R. Biden and Prime Minister Suga Yoshihide

U.S.- Japan Joint Leaders’ Statement

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf Page 8 of 29



Section 1.1: Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP)

April 16, 2021, at the U.S.-Japan Summit Meeting at the White House,
President Joseph R. Biden, Jr. and Prime Minister Suga Yoshihide jointly
announced the “U.S.—Japan Global Partnership for a New Era” (see Section
1, Concept Narrative photo, pg. 8), ushering in a renewed U.S.-Japan
Alliance with two new integrated initiatives — the U.S.-Japan Climate
Partnership and the Competitiveness and Resilience (CoRe) Partnership.

Figure 1.1. Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP)

These integrated initiatives are managed by the Japan-U.S. Clean Energy
Partnership (JUCEP), Figure 1.1. Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership
(JUCEP), co-chaired by the United States Department of State (DOS) and the
Ministry of Economy, Trade, and Industry (METI). The JUCEP is tasked with
ensuring that Japan and the U.S. will lead the world in the transition to a

“sustainable, inclusive, healthy, green global economic recovery.”

Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership
(“JUCEP”)

 Bilateral implementation of nationally determined

contributions (NDCs) to the Paris Agreement

* Public policies to advance proven clean energy

technology transfer, project development, and finance

METI
TR PE RS

Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry

* Enhancing efforts to decarbonize energy sectors in

other countries, especially in the Indo-Pacific

Strengthening the Principle of

of the Paris Agreement

The Honorable Anthony Blinkin
Secretary of State

Source: The Renewable Nations Institute (2022)

Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP):

The JUCEP launched on 10 June 2021, with a virtual meeting co-chaired by
the DOS and METI. The meeting included representatives from the U.S.
Department of Commerce; Department of Energy; U.S. Department of
Treasury; U.S. International Development Finance Corporation; U.S. Trade
and Development Agency; U.S. Agency for International Development;
Export-Import Bank; Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry;
Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs; Japanese Ministry of Finance; Japan
Bank for

Insurance;

International Cooperation; Nippon Export and Investment

Japan Oil, Gas and Metals National Corporation; Japan
International Cooperation Agency; and the New Energy and Industrial

Technology Development Organization of Japan.

The JUCEP co-chairs — Secretary of State Anthony Blinkin and Minister
Hagiuda Koich — shared the view with meeting attendees that U.S.-Japan
cooperation will contribute to green growth, advance shared climate goals
under the Paris Agreement, and help achieve net zero greenhouse gas
emissions globally by 2050.

The Honorable Hagiuda Koich
Minister

The co-chairs further committed the JUCEP to focus global stakeholder
cooperation and targeted cooperation in the Indo-Pacific region to:

1) Address climate change — which has become a global crisis now more

urgent than ever.

2) Support competitive energy markets, which are indispensable to

ensuring a clean, secure and sustainable energy supply;

3) Facilitate universal access to affordable, clean, and reliable energy
services needed to help eradicate poverty, reduce health and
environmental impacts of fossil fuel use, drive economic growth and

recovery, as well as reinforce global energy security; and

4) Engage Indo-Pacific partners to encourage rapid deployment
of clean energy and drive the decarbonization of their economies,
reflecting the principles of the Climate Partnership, by accelerating
diverse, ambitious, and realistic transition paths towards net-zero

emissions.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 9 of 29



The JUCEP will engage private sector and government experts in the United
States and Japan, and regional partners in the Indo-Pacific and around the
world. The JUCEP aims to identify and increase commercial opportunities
that support investment environments that promote decarbonization that
fosters a realistic and ambitious energy transition with universal access to
clean energy services.

JUCEP will mobilize private sector engagement and catalyze all available
policy implementation tools from both countries in a whole of government
approach. The goal is to accelerate sustainable, private sector-led clean
energy investments in technologies from the United States and Japan with a
view to achieving sustainable development and energy security in the Indo-
Pacific . .. and globally.

JUCEP National Task Force by Country:

Key cooperation areas under JUCEP include but are not limited to:

1) Renewable Energy: Geothermal, wind, solar, hydropower, and
critical minerals.

2) Grid Modernization: Grid stability, energy management technology
including battery storage, and transmission.

3) Nuclear Energy: Advanced technologies such as small modular
reactors and light water reactors.

4) Decarbonization Technologies: Carbon Capture, Usage and Storage
(CCUS) technology, Carbon recycling and abatement technologies, as
well as advanced fuels like ammonia, hydrogen, and others.

Figure 1.2. Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP), National Task Force by Country

Co-Chair

Co-Chair

Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership
(“JUCEP”)

National Task Force

METI

Government Agenc

— Japan —

Cabinet Secretariat

Cabinet Office

Ministry of Foreign Affairs
Ministry of the Environment
Financial Services Agency
Ministry of Internal Affairs &
Communications

Ministry of Land, Infrastructure,
Transport & Tourism

Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports,
Science & Technology

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry &
Fisheries

(Partial Listing)

— United States —

Department of the Treasury
Department of Defense
Department of Justice
Department of the Interior
Department of Agriculture
Department of Commerce
Department of Education
Department of Labor
Department of Transportation
Department of Homeland Security
General Services Department
Department of Health & Human
Services

AmeriCorps

Council on Environmental Quality
Environmental Protection Agency
Small Business Administration
Department of Energy

Office of Management & Budget
Department of Homeland Security
Office of Science & Technology
Policy

National Aeronautics & Space
Administration

Secretary of Housing & Urban
Development

Source: The Renewable Nations Institute (2022)

Accelerating Climate Action:

The JUCEP National Task Force for Japan and the U.S. agree that the
findings of the International Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) are compelling;
the world must accelerate climate action. “We have the tools to fight the
climate crisis in every part of the economy, but time is running out.”

The National Task Force for each nation are focused on rapidly reducing
CO2 and related GHG emissions. The U.S. government intends to lead by
example: procuring 100% carbon-free electricity (CFE) by 2030; 100% zero-
emission light-duty vehicle acquisitions by 2027; 100% zero-emission
vehicle (ZEV) acquisitions by 2035; and net-zero emissions building portfolio
by 2045, including a 65% emissions reduction by 2030.

In October 2020, the Japanese government declared its goal to realize
carbon neutrality by 2050. In April 2021, a policy was announced to set a
new GHG reduction target for FY 2030, aiming to reduce CO2 and related
GHG emissions by 46% from FY 2013 levels.

In January 2020, the government of Japan formulated the "Environmental
Innovation Strategy" (decided by the Japan Integrated Innovation Strategy
Promotion Council on 21 January 2020). The Environmental Innovation
Strategy seeks to establish innovative technologies that will enable Japan to
achieve "Beyond Zero" and to reduce 100% of the accumulated amount of
CO2 and related GHG emissions since the Industrial Revolution.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 10 of 29



Section 1.2: Center for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate

To support the bilateral implementation and achievement of the U.S.-Japan
Climate Partnership, the Cabinet Office of Japan and the U.S. Embassy in
Japan sponsored a series of webinars, seminars, and receptions to explore
public-private partnership options to achieve a carbon-free power sector in
Japan and the U.S. The events were co-hosted by the U.S.-Japan Council
(USJC), the Asia Society, the Okinawa Institute of Science and Technology
Graduate University (OIST), the OIST Foundation, the Pacific International
Center for High Technology Research (PICHTR), and the Renewable Nations
Institute.

Figure 1.3. U.S.-Japan Council Webinar Series

5 OIST

Featured speakers included: (i) Dr. Steven Chu, Nobel Laureate in Physics
(1997), former U.S. Secretary of Energy (January 2009 — April 2013) and
William R. Kenan Jr. Professor of Molecular and Cellular Physiology at
Stanford University Medical School; (ii) Mr. Tatsuya Terazawa, Chairman &
CEO of the Institute of Energy Economics Japan (IEEJ), Senior Specially
Professor at the Tokyo University of Science, former Vice-Minister for
International Affairs at the Ministry of Economy, Trade, and Industry (METI)
of Japan, and Executive Secretary to former Prime Minister Yoshihiko Noda;
and (iii) Momoko Nagasaki, Executive Officer at Tokyo Electric Power
Company Holdings.

D ¢

PANEL DISCUSSION IN RESPONSE TO WEBINAR ON FEBRUARY 28, 2022:

Japan’s and the United States’ Quests to Achieve a
Carbon-Free Power Sector: Necessary Breakthroughs
in Policy, Science and Technology, and Business
Models

March 3, 2022 | 6:00 pm to 8:00 pm (EST)

Nippon Club, 145 West 57th Street, New York, NY

RECEPTION ATTENDANCE BY INVITATION ONLY |

DINNER WILL BE SERVED |

LIVE PUBLIC BROADCAST ON ZOOM

Sea Level Rise - Workforce Development - Public Policy - Social Equity

Source: U.S.-Japan Council, OIST Foundation, Renewable Nations Institute (2022)

Concept Paper for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate:

Emerging from the series of webinars, seminars, and receptions was the
identification of the need for a permanent bilateral technical support unit
(TSU) to the Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP).

On 22 March 2022, the Renewable Nations Institute drafted a confidential
concept paper for a Center for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Climate and
Energy as an anchor educational and research program at the Center for
Lifelong Learning at Fort Worden. The concept paper was distributed to the
leadership of the OIST Foundation, the Fort Worden Public Development
Authority (FWPDA), and the Renewable Nations Institute’s academic and
cross-sectoral consortium management team.

Consensus was reached to proceed with the development of a proposed
TSU and to publicly announce the pursuit of a proposed Center at Fort
Worden to key stakeholders in the governments of the U.S. and Japan.

On April 29, 2022, at an event co-hosted by the Ambassador and Consul
General of Japan in New York, H.E. Mikio Mori, the OIST Foundation and the
Renewable Nations Institute announced the intent to pursue voluntary
public-private partnership agreements with the DOS and METI to provide
technical assistance and decision support in service to the JUCEP.

The Institute, in collaboration with the OIST Foundation and the FWPDA,
will host a series of seminars, workshops, and conferences to bring together
governmental organizations from the U.S. and Japan with academic and
cross-sectoral partners of the Institute and the FWPDA.

The purpose of the seminars, workshops, and conferences will be to
advance the concept for the proposed Center for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on
Energy and Climate through early-stage development.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 11 of 29



Organizational Structure:

The Institute has aggregated a multi-sector consortium (Consortium) under
the umbrella of the Renewable Nations L3C, a special purpose vehicle (SPV).
Consortium partners have the capacity to develop, finance, equip, operate,
and maintain the proposed Center for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Climate
and Energy (Center).

The Consortium consists of 14 Academic Partners and 25 Cross-Sectoral
Partners, including Tier R1 doctoral universities, university-based innovation
district developers, climate finance institutions, mission- and impact-driven
investors, architectural firms, instructional technology designers, non-profit
research organizations, and leading for-profit technology companies at the
cutting-edge of building information management (BIM) systems.

Academic Partners have a combined total enrollment of 382,000 students, a
combined operating budget of $109.5 billion, and combined endowment of
$82.6 billion. The combined market capitalization of Cross-Sectoral Partners
exceeds $2.5 trillion. Assets under management by Finance Partners
exceeds $3 trillion. See Figure 1.4, Structure of the Proposed Center for U.S.-
Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate (pg. 13) for a partial listing of
Consortium Partners.

With the release of this Preliminary Assessment: Part 1, Concept Narrative,
the initial on-boarding process for Institute Consortium Partners will
commence. The initial on-boarding process will be completed by July 30,
2022.

Management Structure:

The Renewable Nations Institute proposes to function as the secretariat for
the Consortium and to provide the following roles in the development,
management, and on-going operations of the proposed Center:

1. Consortium Development: The Institute will recruit and maintain
multisector membership in the Consortium consisting of higher
education institutions, research institutes, multilateral development
banks, private philanthropies, financial institutions, private industry,
trade unions, civil society stakeholders, and others.

2. Real Estate Development: In collaboration with the FWPDA, the
Institute will support the planning, designing, financing, engineering,
constructing, retrofitting, preserving, furnishing, and equipping the
proposed Center facilities at Fort Worden.

3. Program Operations and Facility Management: The Institute will
oversee day-to-day operations and maintenance (O&M) of leased
facilities, including but not limited to academic programming, research
and development, and all other permitted uses, i.e., as allowed per
lease agreement with the FWPDA.

4. ESCO Finance Management: The Institute will develop a special
purpose vehicle (SPV) to finance for Work-Products (investment-grade
energy efficiency and renewable energy project proposals developed
by the Institute’s paid Work-Learning-Service interns in collaboration
with full-service energy services contractor (ESCO) project partners
serving in the capacity as adjunct faculty at the Center.

5. Client Recruitment: The Institute will recruit and market to domestic
and international clients for TSU services at all program levels.

Fort Worden Integrated Partner Economy:

The Washington State Parks and Recreation Commission (Commission) and
the FWPDA have established an integrated partner economy to the benefit
of Resident Partners at the Lifelong Learning Center at Fort Worden State
Park.

The management and operations plan for the proposed Center for U.S.-
Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate (Center) will be designed in a
manner to optimize impact to the integrated partner economy, as follows:

1.  State of Washington: Institute seeks to optimize the impact on the
Commission’s objectives for the development of a Lifelong Learning
Center at Fort Worden as reflected in the State strategic framework,
referred to as “Priorities of Government,” and will report the results to
the Commission annually in compliance with the Priorities of
Government Strategic Framework. Government priorities for the State
of Washington within the Priorities of Government Strategic
Framework are to improve student achievement in elementary,
middle, and high schools, and to improve the value of post-secondary
learning, especially for minority communities.

2.  Jefferson County: Jefferson County and the greater Olympic Peninsula
region are undergoing economic transition and recovery from the
socioeconomic impacts of the COVID-19 Pandemic. The Institute will
collaborate, as feasible, with Jefferson County, the City of Port
Townsend, and related local, regional, and state economic

development entities to align the proposed Center’s workforce

development initiatives with regional economic development
priorities, specifically in the context of regional sustainable energy

development and associated workforce training requirements.

3. Resident Partners: The Institute will adhere to the principles of an
integrated partner economy at Fort Worden to the degree to which
the operations and services will be planned to leverage the mission,
operations, and services of current and future Resident Partners at
Fort Worden. The goal is to strengthen the “partnership economy”
through a blend of complementary service offerings specifically
targeted to clients of the Institute’s program-related conference
services. The Institute will conduct its business planning in such a
manner as to collaborate with the FWPDA and Resident Partner
organizations to coordinate program planning, marketing support,
customer service support, scheduling, and facility management and
utilization.

Center Stakeholder Diagram:

Figure 1.4, Center for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate —
Stakeholder Diagram (pg. 13, below), provides a draft conceptual diagram
(subject to change) for prospective project stakeholders, including bilateral
JUCEP administration, Consortium members of the Institute, Resident
Partners of the FWPDA, the FWPDA, and all relevant governmental
organizations pertaining to jurisdictional authority of the development and
use of the Fort Worden State Park and the Lifelong Learning Center at Fort
Worden.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 12 of 29



United States

White House

Figure 1.4. Center for U.S.-Japan Cooperation on Energy and Climate - Stakeholder Diagram

Japan

Cabinet Office

U.S. —JAPAN GLOBAL PARTNERSHIP FOR A NEW ERA

U.S.-Japan Summit Meeting

INITIATIVE #1
U.S.-Japan
Competitiveness and
Resilience (CoRe)

Partnership

4{ State of Washington ‘

INITIATIVE #2
U.S.-Japan

Climate Partnership

Washington State Parks

& Recreation

Commission

Japan-U.S. Clean Energy Partnership (JUCEP)

BILATERAL IMPLEMENTING AGENCIES

‘ City of Port Townsend ‘

United States Department of State

Japan Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry

FORT WORDEN PDA

Master Developer - Lessor

Fort Worden Resident Partners (Lessees
and Strategic Partners)

1

Fort Worden Hospitality ‘

Peninsula College

Goddard College

Centrum

Friends of Fort Worden State Park ‘

Port Townsend School of Woodworking ‘

Madrona Mind Body Institute ‘

Jefferson County Historical Society ‘

Corvidae Press

Rainshadow Recording

KPTZ91.9

Northwind Art ‘
Copper Canyon Press ‘

I .

Puget Sound Coast Artillery Museum ‘

Fort Worden Foundation ‘

RENEWABLE NATIONS INSTITUTE

Lessee — U.S. Consortium Leader

RENEWABLE NATIONS L3C

(Special Purpose Vehicle)

OIST FOUNDATION

Japan Consortium Leader

Key Development and
Planning Partners

Key Cross-Sectoral
Partners (Partial Listing)

4{ Cross Street Partners ‘

Climate Cap Summit

4{ Trahan Architects ‘

Deltares

4{ Field Operations ‘

Echelon Inc.

Key Finance Partners

Source: The Renewable Nations Institute (2022)

Key Academic Research
Partners (Partial Listing)

ol

duate University

Boise State University ‘

Florida State University ‘

I

Inst. for Climate & Peace ‘

Fordham University ‘

Millennium Institute

Russell Investments

Georgia Inst. of Technology ‘

Illinois Inst. of Technology

1

Global Center on Adaptation ‘

New York Inst. of Technology ‘

Sterling Planet

Microsoft

Milliken

University of North Texas ‘

University of Pennsylvania ‘

Vermont Technical College ‘

|

American Sust. Bus. Council ‘

N N N N A ..

Yale University ‘

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 13 of 29



Section 1.3: Focal Areas in Service to the JUCEP

Global Investments in the Energy Transition:

According to the International Energy Agency (IEA), annual investments in
energy (primarily fossil fuels) has been just over USD 2 trillion globally on
average over the last five years. In order to limit median global temperature
rise to below 1.5°C to 2°C, a projected annual investments of USD 7.2 trillion
in energy efficiency and renewable energy (EERE) technologies are required
from 2022 through 2030, and USD 3.5 trillion annually from 2031 through
2050 (updated 2022 estimates). This represents an estimated total
investment of USD 130 trillion through 2050. See Figure 1.5, Annual average
capital investment in the Net Zero Energy (NZE) Scenario through 2050
(previous estimated investments as of 2019-2020):

The Center’s climate finance research agenda will seek to develop new
business models that mobilize private sector financing by advancing public-
private-partnership models that unlock large-scale investment capital in
emerging markets through closer cooperation between EERE developers,
private investors, public financial institutions, and governments.

Research emphasis will include incentivized policy reforms and functional
regulatory frameworks across end-use, energy infrastructure, electricity
generation, and low-emissions fuels to achieve annual investment targets
as defined by the IEA in the NZE pathway.

Figure 1.5. Annual Average Capital Investment in the Net Zero Energy (NZE) Scenario through 2050

By sector

Trillion USD (2019)
S

By technology area Technology area
Other

M Fossil fuels

H CCUS

W Hydrogen
Electricity system

M Electrification
Efficiency
Other renewables

M Bioenergy

Sector
Buildings

M Transport
Industry

M Infrastructure

2016-20 2030 2040 2050

2016-20 2030 2040 2050

BN mmm B uElectricity generation

Fuel production

IEA. All rights reserved.

Capital investment in energy rises from 2.5% of GDP in recent years to 4.5% by 2030; the
majority is spent on electricity generation, networks and electric end-user equipment

Source: International Energy Agency (2020), Net Zero by 2050: A Roadmap for the Global Energy Sector

Impact of the Center Climate Finance Research Agenda:

In alignment with the scale of the JUCEP global impact to lead the world in
solving the climate crisis, the Consortium will endeavor to stimulate USD 1
trillion in annual investments in EERE projects worldwide.

EERE projects will be accomplished by providing technical assistance to
existing international entities, including Green Climate Fund (GCF). The GCF
is charged by the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change
(UNFCCC) to address climate finance at-scale.

In 2010, the UNFCCC established the GCF. In 2011, it designated the GCF as
the operating entity of the UNFCCC’s finance mechanism (Mechanism)
under the Principle of “common but differentiated responsibilities and
respective capabilities” of the Paris Agreement. The Principle requires
developed countries to provide $100 billion annually through 2050 to assist
developing countries in implementing the objectives to limit global warming
from between 1.5°C to 2 °C above pre-industrial levels by the interquartile
period of 2045 to 2050.

The Mechanism is accountable to the UNFCCC Conference of Parties (COP),
which decides on its policies, program priorities, and eligibility criteria for
funding.

In addition to providing guidance to the GCF, the UNFCCC has established
two special funds, the Special Climate Fund (SCCF) and the Least Developed
Countries Fund (LDCF), managed by the Global Environment Facility (GEF)
and the Adaptation Fund (AF).

The Center will develop technical assistance and decision support services
designed to assess the financial risks of JUCEP investments managed by the
GCF, the SCCF, the LDCF, the AF and/or the GEF. The aim of Center technical
assistance and decision support services to the JUCEP is to accelerate
annual investments in EERE projects worldwide through 2050, as projected
in the NZE pathway.

Government investment is essential to attract unprecedented amounts of
private capital to bring new clean energy technologies to market. To attract
the unprecedented amounts of private capital for diverse technology
solutions needed to limit global warming to 1.5°C to 2 °C by 2050, it is
critical for governments to develop investment and regulatory frameworks
to assure equitable distribution of benefits across all sectors of society. This
will require unprecedented inclusion and cooperation from stakeholder
communities.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 14 of 29



Supply-side Energy Workforce Transformation:

According to “Employment in the Energy Sector, Status Report 2020,” a
publication of the Joint Research Centre (the “JRC”) of the European
Commission, global employment in the supply-side energy sector reached
nearly 58 million in 2017. About 29 million of these jobs are in the fossil fuel
industries, approximately 9.8 million in new renewables. The balance of
19.2 million jobs are in nuclear and other legacy energy systems, including
power grids.

The International Renewable Energy Agency (IRENA) projects that jobs in
the supply-side energy sector comprising of transition-related technologies
(renewable energy, energy efficiency, power grids, energy flexibility, fossil
fuels, and nuclear power) could reach 100 million by 2050 (see Figure 1.6,
Energy Sector Job Growth: Reaching 100 million in 2050, below). New
renewables — solar, wind, and biomass — are projected to rise from to 9.8
million jobs to 30 million by 2030, and to 42 million by 2050.

Figure 1.6. Energy Sector Job Growth: Reaching 100 million in 2050

Jobs (million)

@ Power grids
and energy
flexibility

Energy
efficiency

@ Renewables
@ Fossil fuels
@ Nuclear

. .
60
‘m B l
20 . . .
0 — — —
*
2017 2030 2030
Planned Transforming
Based on Energy Energy
IRENA analysis Scenario Scenario

-

2050 2050
Planned Transforming
Energy Energy
Scenario Scenario

Source: IEA (2020), Net Zero by 2050: A Roadmap for the Global Energy Sector

Demand-side Energy Workforce Transformation:

In the demand-side energy sector, employment in the energy efficiency
segment is projected to grow from 3.3 million jobs in 2020 to 24.3 million by
2050, an increase of 21 million.

An industry survey of 60,000 general and operational facility managers in
the U.S. conducted by the Oak Ridge National Laboratory exposed the need
for advanced energy management training to currently employed facilities
managers. Survey results indicated the following:

* 1.7% of general and operational facility managers track energy data,
set energy efficiency and renewable energy goals, and invest in
projects.

* 15% sporadically track energy data but fail to set goals or invest.
*  83% reported little to no knowledge of energy management.

Extrapolating from U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) data on general and

operational facilities managers, an estimated 14 million managers

worldwide require greater knowledge of energy efficiency.

The rapid expansion of the demand-side energy workforce is critical to meet
the UNFCCC’s target to achieve a 50-52% reduction from 2005 levels in
economy-wide net greenhouse gas pollution by 2030, as recommended by
the IPCC in order to limit median global temperature rise to below 1.5°C to
2°C by the interquartile range of 2045-2055.

Challenges to Energy Workforce Transition:

Underlying the Transforming Energy Scenario are significant changes in the
composition of employment and, by extension, changes in the structure,
organization, and execution of workforce preparedness in both the formal
and informal education sectors.

According to the 2020 U.S. Energy and Employment Report (USEER)
published by the National Association of State Energy Officials (NASEO), and
the Energy Futures Initiative (the “EFI”), energy workforce hiring difficulties
are experienced by virtually all supply-side and demand-side segments. This
problem is further exacerbated as the industry adapts to changes due to
structural reform and emerging technologies that are driving market
transformation.

Over 84% of employers across supply-side and demand-side segments in
the U.S. reported difficulty hiring qualified workers over the last 12 months,
an increase of over 7 percentage points (2017-2018 data). The USEER states
the primary issues are “modernization of infrastructure and change in
generation mix requiring new skills that are on two- and five-year cycles”
and the “lack experience, training, and technical skills” in the available pool
of workers. Challenges to energy workforce transition in the developing
world are further exacerbated by the absence of workforce preparedness
for emerging EERE technologies in both the formal and informal education
sectors.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 15 of 29



Section 1.4: Educational Service - Delivery Model and Pedagogy

Service-Learning, Work-Learning-Service Internships:

The Renewable Nations Institute signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) with the Fort Worden Public Development Authority (FWPDA), dated
28 January 2022, with the intent to establish The Renewable Nations
Institute at Fort Worden with proposed Service-Learning, Work-Learning-
Service, and Program-related Conference Services (ref: MOU, Section 2.1-
2.3, The Institute’s Academic and Conference Programming), as follows:

MOU 2.1. Service-Learning: The Institute will develop and operate online
Service-Learning programs at Fort Worden that engages middle and
secondary school students in a course of study and community
service to educate the public on the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (“SDGs”). The course of study shall comprise of
100 hours of online academic study over a period of one academic
year followed by a minimum of 60-hours of community service, or
(b) a two-week summer residency program at Fort Worden followed
by 60-hours of online academic study and a minimum of 60-hours of
community service over a period of one academic year. Students
who successfully complete either course of study will be designated
“United Nations Junior Ambassadors.” (Ref: UNDESA Partnership
Commitment #SDGAction13739)

MOU 2.2. Work-Learning-Service: The Institute will develop and operate a
residential Work-Learning-Service program at Fort Worden engaging
post-secondary students in a course of study resulting in the
development and implementation of Work-Products for multi-sector
stakeholder clients of the Institute. Work-Products will include, but
may not be limited to: (a) development, maintenance, and operation
of online Service-Learning curricula on the SDGs; (b) decision support
services for “Enabling Actions in Energy Planning and Policies,
Capacity Building and Knowledge Sharing” targeted to urban and
rural communities throughout the U.S., and low- and middle-income
member countries of the United Nations; and (c) investment-grade
energy efficiency and renewable energy (EERE) project proposals for
multisector domestic and international clients of the Institute. The
course of study shall comprise of two options: (i) a two-semester
certificate- and/or credit-bearing residency at Fort Worden with a
minimum 160-hours paid internship; or (ii) a four-semester

certificate- and/or credit-bearing residency at Fort Worden with a

minimum 320-hour paid internship. Students who successfully

complete the four-semester, credit-bearing course of study will
receive an Associate of Science in Sustainable Energy Development
and the designation of “United Nations Junior Fellow.” (Ref: UNDESA

Partnership Commitment #SDGAction13739.)

MOU 2.3. Program-related Conference Services: In conjunction with online
and residency certificate- and credit-bearing Service-Learning and
Work-Learning-Service academic programming (ltems 2.1 and 2.2,
above), the Institute will offer program-related conference services
to Institute clients designed in a manner as to contribute to the
integrated resident partner economy at Fort Worden, as referenced
in the Fort Worden State Park Long Range Business and Operating
Implementation Plan.

Pedagogical Framework:

Since 1979, the Institute embraces constructivist and constructionist

pedagogies, which adhere to the following principles:

* That learning is an interactive, socially contextualized process of
constructing knowledge rather than acquiring it.

* That knowledge is constructed or “contextualized” based upon the
learner’s personal experiences and the hypotheses of their social
environment.

* Thatlearners iteratively test hypotheses through social negotiation.

* That each learner has a unique interpretation and construction (or
reconstruction) of the knowledge process.

The early foundation of constructivist and constructionist pedagogies began
with the principles of social development theory espoused by Lev
Semyonovich Vygotsky (1896—1943). Social development theory argues that
social interaction precedes development, and that consciousness and
cognition are the end-product of socialization and social behavior.

John Dewey (1859-1952) advanced constructivist and constructionist
pedagogies arguing that education and learning are social and interactive
processes, and that a school is a social institution through which social
reform can and should take place by preparing students to be reflective,
autonomous and ethical beings capable of arriving at social truths through
critical and inter-subjective discourse based in social inquiry. Problem-
Based Learning (PBL), a method used widely in education today,
incorporates Dewey's ideas pertaining to learning through active inquiry.

Jean Piaget (1896-1980), who coined the term Constructivism, argues that
mechanisms by which information from the environment and ideas from
the individual interact result in internalized structures developed by
learners. Piaget identified that the social processes of assimilation and
accommodation are essential for individuals constructing new knowledge
from their experiences.

Paulo Freire (1921-1997), who coined the term Conscientization — the
process of developing a critical awareness of one’s social reality through
reflection and action — is fundamental to the process of constructing new
knowledge. Hence, learning is a critical process which depends upon
uncovering real problems and actual needs, affirming that men and women
are beings in the process of becoming, and transforming themselves and
society.

Seymour Papert (1928-2016), who advanced the psychological theory of
Constructivist Learning, held the view that learning is a reconstruction of
knowledge rather than as a transmission of knowledge. Constructivist
Learning embraces idea that learning is most effective when part of an
activity the learner experiences as constructing a meaningful product.

Building upon constructivist and constructionist pedagogies, the Institute’s
emerging pedagogical practice is referred to as Productivity-Centered
Service-Learning (K-12) and Productivity-Centered Work-Service-Learning
(secondary and post-secondary).

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 16 of 29



Productivity-Centered Service-Learning and Education for Sustainability in the K-12 Education Sector:

The social construct of sustainability is transforming teaching and learning.
K-12 education institutions globally are integrating sustainability across the
curriculum, driven (in-part) by the emergence of Next Generation Science
Standards (NGSS) led by the National Research Council (NRC), the American
Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS), and the National
Science Teachers Association (NSTA).

NGSS were developed by 26 U.S. partner states, hundreds of NGSS-aligned
higher education institutions (HEIs), and professional organizations. The
NGSS are internationally benchmarked — reflective of the expectations that
other leading nations have set for their students — and are emerging as a
global standard for science education.

The focus of the NGSS is to help prepare students to join the workforce of
the future. Key themes within the NGSS are sustainability and resiliency in
the context of the socioeconomic and environmental impacts of global
warming and the concept of coupled human and natural systems (CHANS).
The teaching methods required by NGSS are based on Constructivism and

Constructivist Learning pedagogies to engage learners.

Figure 1.7. Next Generation Science Standards, State Partner Map

Since its inception in 1996 as a Science, Technology, Engineering and
Mathematics (STEM) instructional technology research organization, the
Institute, in collaboration with multiple domestic R1 and R2 Doctoral
HEls, has
Constructivism and Constructivist Learning research focused principally on

Universities and international conducted peer-reviewed
sustainability in the context of the socioeconomic and environmental

impacts of global warming and CHANS.

The Institute’s Productivity-Centered Service-Learning and Productivity-
Centered Work-Service-Learning pedagogies that emerged during this
research phase convey the elemental understanding of sustainability as a
“measure” or “indicator” of the impact of econometric productivity on
primary productivity, general defined as ecosystems services.

Productivity-Centered Service-Learning and Productivity-Centered Work-
Service-Learning are emerging Constructivism and Constructivist Learning
pedagogies that engage students in learning that a results in the creation of
meaningful “work-products” that achieves sustainability (positive feedback)
across coupled human and natural systems (CHANS).

Arizona
Arkansas
California
Delaware
Georgia
Illinois
lowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan

Next Generation Science Standards
State Partner Map

Minnesota
Montana
New Jersey
New York
North Carolina
Ohio

Oregon
Rhode Island
South Dakota
Tennessee
Vermont
Washington
West Virginia

Source: Achieve (2022)

K-12 Middle School Service-Learning Program:

The Renewable Nations Institute aims to advance its middle and high school
Constructivism and Constructivist Learning-based pedagogies in the context
of online Action-based Research programs operated from Fort Worden.
Action-based Research is a participatory, democratic process concerned
with developing practical knowledge in the pursuit of worthwhile human
purposes, grounded in a participatory worldview emerging at a given
historical moment. Service-Learning is a Constructivist Learning activity that
seeks to bring together action and reflection, theory and practice, in
participation with others, in the pursuit of practical solutions to issues of
pressing concern to people, and more generally, to their communities.

The Center will engage youth in middle school and secondary school (and in
the informal education sectors) worldwide in an online and community-
based, Service-Learning platform, the Green Earth Corps, to support public
education and the dissemination of information on the 17 integrated
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), and on actionable CO2 and GHG
emissions mitigation strategies. The Green Earth Corps (GEC) Service-
Learning platform has been proven through more than a decade of peer-
reviewed research to increase public knowledge about the risks of global
warming and to enhance public acceptability of measurable action on
various proposed CO2 and GHG emissions mitigation strategies.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 17 of 29




The Green Earth Corps (GEC):

The Green Earth Corps (GEC) is an Action-based Service-Learning initiative
designed to support public education and disseminate information on the
SDGs as a means to improve public acceptability of climate-resilient
development pathways and support consumer-driven actionable CO2 and
GHG emissions mitigation strategies.

The GEC was developed by the Institute under Project ERGAL (Renewable
Energy Galapagos, 2002-2009). Each year from 2006 to 2018, more than 450
to 1,000 students from hundreds of school districts in 7 U.S. states and 52
nations participated in peer-reviewed GEC research projects developed,
designed and/or operated by the Institute and its collaborating R-1
research-based universities — University of Vermont (UVM) and University
of North Texas (UNT) — with funding from the National Science Foundation
(NSF).

The foundational research conducted by the Institute and its university-
based collaborators demonstrates the capacity of the GEC Service-Learning
initiative to empower youth to hold the general public accountable for
improving their attitudes, knowledge, beliefs, and intentions toward climate
change (Figure 1.8. Grading Teens’ and Adults’ Knowledge of Climate
Change).

Despite the critical need for changes in climate change-related consumer
behavior worldwide, the general public knows little about the issue, less
about what they can do, the barriers to action they confront, or the factors
that motivate wide-scale behavioral changes. Subsequent studies and
surveys by UNDP, the Yale Project on Climate Change Communication, and

Institute collaborating universities produced similar results.

Figure 1.8. Grading Teens’ and Adults’ Knowledge of Climate Change

B'Teens ™ Adults
75
2
=)
3
©
=]
Qo
2
S
&
S
©
=
)
g
o
=¥
0
A B C D F
Straight Scale

Source: Yale Project on Climate Change Communication, 2011

Peer-Reviewed Research, Middle-Schoolers Out-to-Save the World:

Middle Schoolers Out-to-Save the World (M-SOS-W) (2008-2012) and Going
Green! Middle Schoolers Out-to-Save the World (2013-2019) were National
Science Foundation (NSF) research grants (#DRL-083376 and #DRL-1312168)
in which each school year approximately 650 sixth graders from middle
schools in California, Hawaii, Louisiana, Maine, North Carolina, Texas, and
Vermont monitored home energy use under supervision of their teachers.

The data collected by students were used to develop optimum scenarios for
conserving energy and reducing the production of carbon dioxide (CO2) and
greenhouses gas (GHG) emissions in their communities. Students and
teachers used online software tools to record and analyze their data and
create projections of future energy use based on assumptions of policy
changes and communicated their results to the general public within the
project via information communication technologies (ICTs).

Data from 1,576 middle school students provided accurate and reliable
information concerning the “intentionality” of students, teachers, and
energy consumers to make dramatic reductions of CO2 and related GHG
emissions in their communities when educated on the socioeconomic and

environmental impacts of climate change.

Peer-Reviewed Research, Global Challenge Award:

The Global Challenge Award (2006-2009) engaged over 3,000 high school
students from around the world, including students from developing
countries, working in elLearning teams to create innovative solutions to
address global climate change, and to present their solutions and its global

business potential to a panel of industry professionals.

The ITEST grant award was complemented by a MacArthur Foundation
grant award which provided a K-16 partnership framework that supported
over 230 young women and minority high school students from around the
world for three years to develop the knowledge, skills, and personal vision
to see science, technology, engineering, and mathematical (STEM) studies

as feasible and desirable choices for college majors.

M-SOS-W and the Global Challenge Award are peer-reviewed, Action-
research programs that support the claim that the Institute offers proven
quality educational programs that reflect a real and bold vision that
“millions of young leaders can influence consumers to make dramatic
reductions of energy consumption and related CO2 and GHG emissions in
their communities.”

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 18 of 29



Section 1.5: Integrated Service-Learning / Work-Learning-Service Program

Secondary and Post-Secondary GEC Program Integration:

The Institute is proposing to launch an integrated secondary and post-
secondary Green Earth Corps (GEC) workforce development program at Fort
Worden focused on energy efficiency industry workforce development. The
programs aim to expand the professional, certified energy efficiency
workforce in greater numbers and years earlier than currently accessible.

The program will attract, motivate, and retain youth — targeting minority
youth — for energy efficiency education and careers by putting advanced
energy data collection, modeling, and simulation tools in the hands of
teachers, students, and interns to create meaningful models of energy
consumption, and to help consumers achieve electricity cost savings and
reduce carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions from building power loads.

The Institute will operate the program concurrently in two cohorts: (i) a
Service-Learning cohort consisting of high school students; and (ii) a Work-
Learning-Service cohort of consisting of paid post-secondary interns in-
residence at Fort Worden.

These two cohorts will work in tandem throughout the year to master the
required skills for pre-audit benchmarking of building power loads,
including HVAC systems, interior and exterior lighting, refrigeration and
water heating, and power plug and process loads (PPLs), to producing
investment-grade energy efficiency project proposals in collaboration with
licensed mechanical, electrical, and plumbing engineers (MEPs) serving as
adjunct faculty of the Institute and its academic partners.

Figure 1.9. EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™ Tool App Interface

The Service-Learning cohort will complete 100-hours of online training on
issues related to energy and climate, learn to use energy modeling
software, and complete 60-hours of community service conducting pre-
audit energy efficiency services on commercial and institutional buildings in
their communities. Upon successful completion of the Service-Learning
curriculum, students be eligible for a Summer Youth Employment Program
(SYEP) managed by the Institute in designated urban communities.

Key to successfully launching the integrated programs is the development
of an emerging technology platform utilizing the EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™
App (see Figure 1.9, EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™ App, below) developed by
Empower Equity, a women, minority, and disabled veteran-owned business
enterprise.

The EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™ App deploys Al (artificial intelligence) to
remove the barrier to early entry in the energy efficiency workforce by
eliminating the need for vast reservoirs of knowledge and experience to
conduct the initial audit phase of an energy efficiency retrofit project.

The EMPEQ App uses a proprietary One-Click™ camera feature of a web-
connected mobile device (smartphone) to capture nameplate data for
building power plug loads (PPLs) and building-integrated (hardwired)
equipment (heating and cooling, controls, lighting, etc.) The device then
transfers the data to a central CPU, where it is catalogued in a format to
assist in project decision support by diverse upstream project stakeholders.

550 A& @ *an

<  Projects

Create New Project

@ Suburban Hospital
Norton Healthcare Boulevard, Louisville

Kentucky

Industrial park Expansion

© sy s ve”

Warehouse

@ 268 Saunders Ave, Louisville, Ke
10206, US

Phelps Hospital

Admin Offices

© Zipria ot oo e,

Site Survey Estimate Proposals

<4 [ ]

Photo above: Intern using EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™ App to collect HVAC system nameplate data.

Source: Empower Equity, Inc. (2021)

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 19 of 29



Service-Learning Curriculum:

The GEC Service-Learning curriculum focuses pre-teen and teen enthusiasm
for activity in the direction of solving real-world problems associated with
energy and climate, while also promoting knowledge of and interest in
science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM).

The program will consist of two parts:

1.  Course of Study: Online and/or in-class course of study to educate the
general public on the United Nations (UN) Sustainable Development
Goals (“SDGs”). The course of study shall comprise of 100 hours of
academic study over a period of one academic year focusing on
energy and climate: SDG-7: Ensure access to affordable, reliable,
sustainable, and modern energy for all; and SDG-13: Take urgent
action to combat climate change and its impacts.

2.  Community Service: Minimum of 60-hours of community service using
advanced data collection tools, the EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™ App (see
page 16, Figure 1.9, EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™ App) and other energy
modeling software to build accurate, scientifically important models
of energy consumption and CO2 emissions in communities under the
guidance of teachers.

Summary of Curriculum Goals and Objectives:

Goal 1. To interest and prepare middle- and high-school students to
participate in the science, technology, engineering, and mathematics
(STEM) workforce of the future (targeted to careers in energy services).

Objective 1.1: Provide students with energy survey software and train
them to conduct a consumer appliance survey in their own homes and
in their communities. Expected Outcome: Accurate surveys of
electrical power equipment and consumer appliances will be
produced for an appropriate number of homes, small businesses, and
schools. Data on projected energy use will be aggregated in a
database for teacher and student use, and to share with a growing

network of schools around the country and the world.

Objective 1.2: Have students use information technology applications
(spreadsheets, database packages, visualization tools, and simulators)
to aggregate and clean individual data for future analysis, then
participate in IT-intensive analyses of the data under the guidance of
the teacher. Expected Outcome: A deeper understanding of the many
forms of representations of the relationships among the variables in
complex data sets. Data visualizations will be made available for
teacher and student use in national and international networks of
schools. Data will be made available to the professional research
community, including national energy research laboratories.

Objective 1.3: Conduct class exercises to analyze the aggregate
student data with an emphasis on “what if” projections of the
financial and environmental implications of: a) doing nothing, or b)
implementing specific, promising solutions on a wider scale. Expected
Outcome: Students will gain greater interest in and deeper
understanding of STEM-related activities. They will how such activities
impact society, the economy, and the environment and gain greater

interest in STEM-related careers in energy services.

Goal 2. To foster knowledge, skills, and dispositions in middle- and high-
school students, their families, and their teachers that enable both
awareness and on-going monitoring of home and community energy
consumption for the purpose of producing model-based projections and
data-driven decision support regarding home and community energy
expenses and environmental impact.

Objective 2.1: Train teachers in the following skill sets: using
information technology software tools to foster teamwork and
collaboration over distance; assessing student outcomes utilizing data
laboratories and other data

available from national sources;

participating in global collaborations; and using games and
simulations to facilitate STEM learning. Expected outcome: A new
middle school curriculum unit on energy monitoring as a decision
support service for climate change mitigation set in the context of a

global scientific inquiry.

Objective 2.2: Bring students and teachers together with project staff
using video conference software early during school year to discuss
purpose of program and to train them on the use of equipment for
energy monitoring. Expected outcome: Increased knowledge and
skills

techniques, and optimization modeling in the context of the diversity

of teachers and students in planning, implementation

of energy supply and demand scenarios.

Objective 2.3: Have students monitor power grid energy consumption
of individual appliances in their homes and local communities to
identify major sources of power consumption by end-use. Expected
outcome: Increased knowledge of personal and community power
consumption as individual skills in data collection, aggregation, and
presentation are developed.

Objective 2.4: Implement school-to-home and school-to-community
communication linkages with parents and the general public to
promote dialog and ongoing involvement during the school year.
Expected outcome: Consumer attitudes toward energy conservation
and knowledge of strategies for conservation and climate change
mitigation will improve.

Objective 2.5: Have students and teachers together develop power
consumption optimization models that would enable targeting
specific changes in existing consumption practices and projecting the
effect of implementing behavioral changes on environmental
concerns such as CO2 level in the atmosphere. Expected outcome:
Student and teacher attitudes and behavior toward energy
conservation and knowledge of strategies for conservation and

climate change mitigation will improve.

Objective 2.6: Examine the change in student dispositions towards
seeking a career in STEM-related disciplines, including information
technology. Expected outcome: The proportion of students involved
in the program who will consider a STEM related career will be greater
than those who do not participate in the program.

Goal 3. To produce model scenarios and activities that can be disseminated
to educators nationwide, enabling classrooms beyond the immediate
project to prepare STEM workforce participants for the future.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 20 of 29



Goal 3, Continued:

Objective 3.1: Develop web-accessible collection of lesson materials
to be made available to the broader educational community.
Expected Outcome: A well-defined curricular model for energy
consumption modeling in which middle schoolers can make significant
contributions through local use of sensors and participation in a data-
sharing network.

Objective 3.2: Develop a repository of energy-consumption data
profiles for at least four sites per student retrievable by educators in
the broader community and configured in a web-2.0 environment
such that educators outside the Service-Learning community can
contribute comparative data energy sets to the repository. Expected
Outcome: Exemplary data profiles of energy consumption modeling
for multiple sites in the U.S., which could be used by middle- and high-
school educators at any location for comparative studies with their
classes.

Objective 3.3: Have students report on their findings in scholarly
forums and workshops, such as NSTA (National Science Teacher
Association) conferences and/ or webcasts conducted by the project
staff. Expected Outcome: Increase in student confidence and
competence in scientific inquiry skills; increased interest in STEM
interest in

careers (including energy services) and increased

professional development opportunities for science teachers.

GEC Targeted Energy Reductions:

Plug and process loads (PPLs): Student surveys will target plug and process
loads (PPLs) and hardwired loads. PPLs are defined as all plug-in and
hardwired loads in a building that are not associated with heating,
(HVAC),
or other major equipment needed for basic building operation. This

ventilating, and air conditioning lighting, water heating,
includes all plug-in equipment and appliances, as well as processes for

cooking, computing, and internal transportation.

Plug and process loads (PPLs) account for 47% of U.S. commercial building
energy consumption (EIA 2020) (see Figure 1.15, Assessing and Reducing
Plug and Process Loads (PPLs) in Office Buildings ). The percentage of total
building energy use from PPLs is increasing; by 2029, the percentage of PPL
energy consumption is anticipated to increase to 51%.

Minimizing these loads is a significant challenge for due to a combination of
factors, i.e., consumer awareness of PPL loads, knowledge of intervention
strategies, high cost of labor, unfavorable economics due to long payback
periods, and inability to secure conventional ESCO financing for PPL
efficiency measures. Due to these consumer and market challenges, the
Institute argues that achieving significant energy consumption and CO:2
emissions reductions from PPLs in the U.S. commercial and institutional
building sectors is the unique domain of youth through community service,
Service-Learning, and SYEP programs.

Figure 1.10: Assessing and Reducing Plug and Process Loads (PPLs) in Office Buildings

PPL Reduction Target: The U.S. Department of Energy’s National Renewable
Energy Laboratory (NREL) was able to reduce PPL energy consumption in its

National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL)

Research Support Facility by 43% (below), resulting in an annual cost saving of "“;‘;‘.,T"
$58,000, and a reduction of $5 million for facility photovoltaic (PV) systems cost. U.S. PRIMARY
i ENERGY
At right: PPLs represent 47% of commercial and institutional building energy Transzp:;t:t'on Residential BREAKDOWN
- . 21%
consumption in the United States.
Commercial
18%
$140,000 Water
B $120000
o
2> 43% Space Ven;I;a‘tIon
¥ $100,000 Reduction Cooling
9%
]
(-]
O $80,000
>
(< Sl COMMERCIAL
g $60,000 14% BUILDINGS
w ENERGY
] CONSUMPTION
[]
3 HATL BREAKDOWN
c
< $20,000
$0
Before After
Source: National Renewable Energy Laboratory (2020)

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf Page 21 of 29




Proposed Proof-of-Concept Pilot Project:

The Institute, in collaboration with multiple enabling partners, will develop
and operate two proof-of-concept pilot projects to demonstrate the
efficacy of Service-Learning students and Work-Learning-Service interns to
successfully deploy EMPEQ’s Fast Site Survey™ App to identify PPLs.

1.  An academic partnership with Syracuse University (NY) to establish
workforce training and data collection protocols for EMPEQ’s Fast Site
Survey™ App. Syracuse is a U.S. Department of Energy Industrial
Assessment Centers (IACs) site and a 2009 IACs Center of Excellence

Award winner. See Industry Assessment Centers (IACs) (see pg.26).

2. A proposed GEC Summer Youth Employment Program (SYEP) In New
York City with a cohort of 100 paid student interns (ages 16-24) in
collaboration with EMPEQ, Syracuse University, the Children’s Aid
Society of New York, and the City of New York Department of Youth
and Community Development (DYCD).

The academic partnership with Syracuse University to establish workforce
training protocols for EMPEQ’s Fast Site Survey™ App is anticipated to be
completed prior to the proposed launch of the SYEP in New York City
scheduled for July-August 2022. The SYEP pilot is pending full program
funding.

SYEP Objectives:

The GEC Summer Youth Employment Program (SYEP) In New York City will
provide 26-hours of employment for a period 6-weeks for a cohort of up to
100 paid interns earning $15 per hour. The SYEP interns will be trained on
the data collection protocols for EMPEQ's Fast Site Survey™ App to conduct
pre-audit service for benchmarking building for compliance under Local Law
84 (LL84), Local Law 133 (LL133), and Local Law 97 (LL97) of the New York
City Climate Mobilization Act (CMA).

Beginning in 2024, LL97 statutes levy financial penalties on owners of
buildings over 25,000 gross sq. ft. subject to LL84 and LL133 (Energy
Benchmarking) for failure to meet specified carbon emission limits. These
local laws cover over 60,000 buildings and will have a disproportionate
impact on low-income and minority populations as building owners seek to
recover cost burdens due to financial penalties for non-compliance.

During the 6-weeks SYEP project term, GEC interns will educate the public
on CMA statutes for compliance with energy benchmarking for “Covered
Buildings” buildings greater than 25,000 sq. ft., conduct CMA-related pre-
audit activities to provide an inventory of “as-built” specifications for LL84
and LL133 compliance and engage building owners with CMA-certified MEP
professionals to expedite LL97-required annual reporting and CMA
compliance planning.

Figure 1.11. Local Law 97, Sample Non-Compliance Violation Fee Schedule

GHG EUI PROJECTIONS VS. LIMITS

11.50

11.00

10.50

10.00

9.50

10.90

10.24

8.50
8.00
7.50
7.00
6.50
6.00
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
=== GHG EUI (kgCO2e/ft?) = Limit (kgCO2e/ft?)

Year 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
(kchHoGzzyf'tz) 9.25 9.58 9.91 10.24 10.57 10.90
Vi°'("°‘st)i°"5 $ 100,54824| $ 113,830.32| $ 127,112.40| $ 140,394.48| $ 153,676.56 | $ 166,958.64

Source: Cotocon Group (2021)

Projected Outcomes of the SYEP:

The projected outcomes of the SYEP are to: (a) create a STEM education
pipeline for the energy efficiency services sector; (b) establish new labor
category in the global energy efficiency industry; (c) lower the barrier for
minorities to enter the energy efficiency labor market; (d) develop the
potential to create millions of new entry-level jobs in the global energy
efficiency industry through future program replication at-scale; (e) and
dramatically reduce CO2 emissions from the burning of fossil fuels at a
temporal scale consistent with New York City’s 1.5°C Climate Action Plan.

Integration with Work-Learning-Service Cohort at Fort Worden:

The proposed cohort of Work-Learning-Service interns at Fort Worden will
utilize “as-built” specifications produced by SYEP interns for LL84 and LL133
energy (and CO2) benchmarking compliance to develop investment-grade
energy efficiency project proposals in collaboration CMA-certified MEP
engineers. The Institute will collaborate with its climate finance consortium
partners to develop a commercial property assessed clean energy (C-PACE)
fund under NYC Local Law 96 to finance energy efficiency projects for
affiliated energy services contractors (ESCOs).

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 22 of 29



Figure 1.12: Service-Learning Project Flow Di

Color Key:

agram

A\ 4

Institute/ Partner

School / District

Student/Intern Client/MEP

RENEWABLE NATIONS
INSTITUTE

Registration and Enrollment / Curriculum Delivery

Sept-Oct: (Admin) School
Program. Institute conducts on-

professional development for
teachers. Pre-test.

registration in GEC Service-Learning

boarding, student registration, and

outreach campaign.

Oct-Jan: Hybrid online/in-class
curriculum on the SDGs. Students
conduct inventory of commercial
and institutional buildings for public

Jan: (Admin) School and Institute
review and approve inventory of
commercial and institutional
buildings for public outreach

|

Community Service

campaign.

Feb: Clients select

Feb: Prospective
Clients attend
corporate sponsored
school event.

\4

company

representative and
registers w. Institute.

Mar-Apr: Students conduct PPL
inventory and equipment loads
using EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™
and generate usable database.

May-June: Students final
reports and present to

school & and community.
Awards. Post-test.

Students present on
program content

A

Y

and recruit clients
for pre-audit
services.

Feb: (Admin) School reviews and
approves company representative.

June: (Admin) Institute recruits for SYEP interns and
selects MEPs and clients for comprehensive audit.

|

Summer Youth Employment Program

!

July-Week 1: Student July-Week 2 & 3: Site inspection July-Week 4: Clients
registration and orientation. | and verification of EMPEQ Fast | approve energy
Team and facility assignments. “| Ssite Survey™ data. Run energy “1 monitoring and
Pre-test and job assignments. demand and consumption benchmarking plan.
modeling based on various
v “what-if” scenarios.

July-Week 1: Client contract w. A July-Aug, Week 4, 5, & 6: Install
Institute for MEP benchmarking monitoring equipment, run
services. Student and supervisor July-Week 2 & 3: (Admin) MEPs energy demand and
team interviews with client »| site and data review. Data consumption modeling based
representative. monitoring plan. upon preliminary weekly data.

l School & Community Energy Fair l
Aug-Week 6: Closing Day Aug-Week 6: Closing Day .| Aug-Week 6: Closing Day
Public Presentation rehearsal > Public Presentation ”1 Client Sponsored Awards Dinner

Project / Client Transition to Work-Learning-Service Internship

(See Figure 1.18: Work-Learning-Service Internship Project Flow Diagram, pg. 28)

Note: Institute program coordination will be managed remotely from Fort Worden. Institute/Partner refers to the SYEP
managed by Institute in collaboration with local Partners. School/District assumes district-wide program with individual
school/teacher instructional supervision. Student/Intern refers to the student pathway from volunteer Service-Leaning to paid
SYEP Work-Learning-Service intern. (Students enrolled in Service-Learning and SYEP for multiple years are designated as team
leaders.) Client/MEP refers to private sector engagement — client contract services and MEP contract services. Client accounts
are transitioned to Work-Learning-Service internship program at Fort Worden for full-service, turnkey investment-grade energy
service contract (ESCO) development. MEPs are transitioned to Work-Learning-Service program as adjunct faculty.

Source: Renewable Nations Institute (2022)

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 23 of 29



National Program Replication:

According to the U.S. Corporation for National and Community Service
National Student Learning and Community Service Survey, 83% percent of
all high schools in the U.S. were reported to require community service, and
46% percent were reported to require Service-Learning.

School-based community service and Service-Learning engage 15.5 million
youth — 55% of young people ages 12 to 19 — in approximately 1.3 billion
hours of community service each year. Moreover, youth that engage in
school-based community service and Service-Learning are more apt to
participate in a Summer Youth Employment Programs (SYEP).

A literature review of studies, reports, and peer-reviewed research suggests
school-based community service and Service-Learning are key indicators for
participation in SYEP and advanced educational and career success.

Figure 1.13. 2020 Municipal Summer Youth Employment Program Budgets

Building upon the peer-reviewed Service-Learning research conducted by
the Institute in collaboration with the University of Vermont (2006-2009)
and the University of North Texas (2008-2019), the Institute will launch a
national research project in U.S. municipalities nationwide in 2023,
beginning with the top 9 SYEP programs, as identified in Figure 1.14, 2020
Municipal Summer Youth Employment Program Budgets, below.

The Institute embraces the notion that school-based community service,
Service-Learning, and SYEP represent a viable education and career pipeline
for the energy services sector.

Center research activities will advance peer-reviewed research regarding
service-to-career pathways by assessing the apparent causality between
school-based community service, Service-Learning, SYEP participation, and
student education and career choices.

Summer Youth Employment Program (SYEP)
Municipal Budgets — 2020

Top 9 Municipalities

(by Expenditures)

$13,180,000

Philadelphia
$6,325,000

Location

. Allentown, PA

! Atlanta, GA

0 Baltimore, MD

. Boston, MA
Brevard, FL

[ ] Bridgeport, CT

. Chicago, IL

[ Detroit, MI

B &l Paso, TX
Evanston, IL

. Fort Lauderdale, FL

B Hawthorne, CA

. Indianapolis, IN

. Kansas City, MO

- Los Angeles, CA

. Louisville, KY

. Memphis, TN

. Nashville, TN

. New York, NY
Philadelphia, PA

. Pittsburg, PA

™ Portland, OR

. Providence, RI

. Tallahassee, FL

$92,200,000

Source: U.S. Department of Energy (2022)

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 24 of 29




Work-Learning-Service at Fort Worden:

The cohort of Work-Learning-Service interns at Fort Worden will be enrolled
in a certificate-bearing energy efficiency and renewable energy (EERE)
education program modeled after U.S. Department of Education Work
College statutes and the Industrial Assessment Centers (IACs) administered
through the Advanced Manufacturing Office under the Office of Energy
Efficiency and Renewable Energy at the Department of Energy, and .U.S.
Department of Education Work-College statutes under Title 34, Subtitle B,
Chapter VI, Part 675, Subpart C, §675.41 (2018).

Work-College statutes require: (a) that at least one-half of all students
enrolled on a full-time basis participate in a comprehensive paid Work-
Learning-Service program for at least five hours each week, or at least 80
hours during each period of enrollment; (b) that learning objectives,
evaluation and a record of work performance as part of the student's
college record; (c) that programmatic leadership by personnel at levels are
comparable to traditional academic programs; (d) that the Work-Learning-
Service supervisors have an educational role; and (e) that consequences for
student non-performance are similar to the consequences in a regular
academic program. (GPO, 2018).

Figure 1.14. Work-Learning-Service Curriculum Framework

Work-Learning-Service Curriculum:

Credit-bearing courses and degree-granting academic programs offered at
the Center will be managed by accredited academic members of the
Consortium under a master articulation agreement governing the transfer
of credits between Consortium members and/or other colleges and
universities.

Accredited academic consortium members will design instructional
courseware under the general curriculum framework developed by the
Institute, as described in Figure 11, Work-Learning-Service Curriculum
Framework, below. Work-Learning-Service curriculum will be delivered by
accredited academic Consortium members utilizing a variety of formats,
including lectures, workshops, seminars, field surveys, tutorials, traditional
and non-traditional classroom and laboratory settings, residency and low-

residency academic programming, and distance learning.

The Institute will manage non-accredited, certificate programs, professional
development services, and Work-Learning-Service internship activities,
including the supervision of Work-Products (or deliverables) to the JUCEP
and other clients of the Institute.

G-1.01

Energy & G-1.02
Environmental

Economics

Environmental
ImpactStudies

G-1.03

Clean Energy- G-1.04 (Ein
based Global Energy & Geospatial
Technologies Climate Policy Mapping s

RENEWABLE NATIONS INSTITUTE

Work-Learning-Service

Internship Curriculum Framework

G-3.01

G302 Project
Leadership Management

Training

G-2.02 G-3.04 G-3.03
Systetns Individoalized Thesis Studies
“. Modeling

Tutorial

GROUP 1

Energy, Environment & Economics

GROUP 2
Systems Modeling

GROUP 3
Leadership Development

G-1.01:

Economics of clean energy
technologies as a
greenhouse gas (GHG)
reduction strategy.

G-1.02:

Methodologies for the
permitting and licensing of
renewable energy
projects.

G-1.03:

Systems optimization
modeling to improve the
energy intensity and
productivity.

G-1.04:

Case studies of policy
mechanisms under various
proposed Clean
Development Mechanisms
(CDMs).

G-2.01:

Energy resource mapping
utilizing geospatial
technologies and country
data.

G-2.02:

Systems Dynamic
Modeling as a method to
assess the risks and
benefits of alternative

energy policies.

G-3.01:
Multi-disciplinary,
outcomes-based project
management training.

G-3.02:

Advanced energy
efficiency and renewable
energy technologies.

G-3.03

Thesis or field project
based upon the “case
study” method combined
with field research.

G-3.04:

Individualized tutorials
focusing on public policy
and/or clean energy
technology with senior
faculty approval.

Source: Renewable Nations Institute (2022)

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 25 of 29




Industry Assessment Centers (IACs) Integration:

Industrial Assessment Centers (IACs), formerly called the Energy Analysis
and Diagnostic Centers (EADCs), were created by the Department of
Commerce in 1976 in response to the oil embargo and rising energy costs. It
was specifically focused on helping small and medium-sized manufacturing
facilities cut back on unnecessary costs from inefficient energy use. The IACs
were largely responsible for creating today's energy services contract
(ESCO) industry.

Today, the U.S. DOE Industrial Assessment Centers (IACs) help small and
medium-sized US manufacturers save energy, improve productivity, and
reduce waste by providing no-cost technical assessments conducted by
university-based teams of engineering students and faculty. IACs provide
industry clients with a comprehensive report with specific details on all
opportunities for improving energy efficiency and cost savings identified
during an assessment, including applicable rebates and incentives.

The IACs program has conducted over 19,984 assessments with more
than 149,618 associated recommendations, with an average recommended
yearly savings of $137,326 per recommendation. The total lifecycle avoided
cost savings of implemented recommendations exceed $47.4 billion. (See
page 27, IACs Avoided Cost Savings Performance Data.)

Figure 1.15. University-based Industrial Assessment Centers (IACs): 2022-2026

The IACs program management maintains a comprehensive searchable
database of Assessments and Recommendations performed by the IACs.
The IACs Database can be searched by Assessments (Industry Type, Size,
Year, Energy Costs, Products), by Recommendations (Type, Savings, Cost,
Implemented), and/or by Industry Type (SIC and NAICS).

A Recommendation Index is available for all assessment recommendation
codes (ARC). Recommendation Implementation Rates (RIRs) can be charted
by center, years, or state. The database is available to the public and can be
downloaded for integration other software programs for energy analysis,
including the EMPEQ Fast Site Survey App and CPU software Interface.

Prospective Renewable Nations Academic partners, including Boise State
University, Georgia Institute of Technology, Syracuse University, University
of Florida, and University of Idaho, are current or former university-based
IACs. These institutions have the capacity to provide the technical services
required for the Institute to establish and refine workforce training
curriculum, data collection protocols, database integration, assessments
and recommendations for the developing energy efficiency investment-
grade proposals for institute clients.

l‘i Industrial Assessment Centers 2(022-2026

W.
& UNIVERSITY of
WASHINGTON

[

Oregon State
“/ University

THEU

UNIVERSITY
OF UTAH

AN FRANCISCO
STATE UNIVERSITY

COLORADO

MINES

WICHITA STATE
UNIVERSITY

¢
7
y C
UCI University of
California, Irvine A M
The University of Texas
RioGrande Valley,
N
~ 5 a
- N Lo

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF

Al ENERGY

Source: U.S. Department of Energy (2022)

N l)vastnv ]OF

Lincoln”

LA!E:H M';:;ss,ppl s-msx;'
‘_g‘ /: lc t

GRAMBLING

Clarkson

UNIVERSITY

CONN

UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT

¢S LEHIGH

NIVERSITY

Field Managers

RUTGERS

THESTATE UNIVERSITY

THE UNIVERSITY OF

MEMPHIS,
o0

CLARK ATLANTA
UNIVERSITY

UF [FLORIDA

'T;*

UNIVERSITY
OF MIAMI

Office of ENERGY EFFICIENCY
& RENEWABLE ENERGY

Universidad del

Una universidad completa

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 26 of 29



IACs Avoided Cost Savings Performance Data:

The IACs maintain statistics on projected annual avoided cost savings on
Assessments and Recommendations performed by the IACs. Figure 1.13.
Status of IACs Recommendations, below, charts 149,618 Recommendations
by implementation rates, indicating an overall implementation rate of
46.4%.

Figure 1.16. Status of IACs Recommendations

Total Recommendations

o I implemented [l Not Implemented

| | Unknown

6,000
4,000
2,000

0
'\9%\

Source: U.S. Department of Energy (2022)
Figure 1.17. Performance Statistics of IACs Recommendations

149,618 Recommendations

7.5 Recommendations Per Assessment

Figure 1.14, Average Recommended Savings per Assessment, shows the
average avoided energy cost savings performance of 69,393 implemented
Recommendations at $45,564, a total cost savings of $3.2 billion (rounded).
Assuming a 20-year lifecycle for energy efficiency equipment, the lifecycle
avoided energy cost savings are estimated at $47.4 billion.

—— Total Recommendations

= | B
4 e~ .
7‘ n A~
I | 2 ~ N
I’ w4 IIIL N
Ilﬁﬁll I“I |
>

) ) Sl Q A\ > ) 3 O A
\9% »\(b% »\9% »\9% »\‘29 »\‘bg »\99 »\99 »\99 790

WS o o g g g9 e e®

69,393 Implemented Recommendations

3.5 Implemented Per Assessment

Average Average

Recommended Savings Cost ($) Usage % Usage Implemented Impacts Cost ($) Usage % Usage
Per Assessment* Savings Reduction Unit Reduction Per Assessment* Savings Reduction Unit Reduction
All Energy $82,693 13,065 MMBtu 8.3% All Energy $28,680 4,635 MMBtu 3.0%

- Electrical $46,414 852,510 kWh 10.1% - Electrical $16,048 282,682 kWh 3.3%

- Natural Gas $20,232 3,715 MMBtu 6.9% - Natural Gas $6,845 1,375 MMBtu 2.5%
Waste $8,665 Waste $2,484

Productivity/Other $45,966 Productivity/Other $14,401

TOTAL $137,324 TOTAL $45,564

Source: U.S. Department of Energy (2022)

Renewable Nations Program-Related Revenue Model:

The average avoided energy cost savings of $45,564 represents the direct
costs of technology interventions (hard costs). The balance of system (BOS)
or soft costs, including energy services contractor (ESCO) overhead and
profit, labor costs, project financing, energy monitoring and verification of
savings, warranty insurance, maintenance, and fees — are not calculated in
average avoided energy cost savings projected by the LACs.

Assuming an industry standard of BOS costs at 1.33 times hard costs, the
average turnkey ESCO cost would total $106,000 and represent a project
payback period of 2.33 years.

The Institute’s program model will differ from the ICAs program as follows:

1. The Institute, in addition to the Assessment services, will provide
C-PACE in
partnership with private sector ECSOs and climate finance partners.

turnkey construction and project financing under

2. The Institute will generate program-related revenue based upon an
annual fee of 5% of the verified annual avoided energy cost savings
for a specified term under the energy services contract (ESCO),
thereby achieving financial sustainability for Institute programs.

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 27 of 29



Figure 1.18: Work-Learning-Service Internship Project Flow Diagram

Color Key:

Institute/ Partner

Academic Partner

Student / Intern Client / MEP / ESCO

A\ 4

RENEWABLE NATIONS
INSTITUTE

Registration / Enrollment / Orientation / Site Selection

June-July: (Admin) On-board Aug-Sept: Work-Learning-Service Sept-Oct: Work-Learning-Service
Academic Consortium Partners intern hybrid enrollment in interns and MEPs evaluation and
under Articulation Agreement to »1 online/in-class curriculum on the »1 selection of commercial and
provide Work-Learning-Service SDGs for Service-Learning cohort institutional sites surveyed by SYEP
courseware and approve support. using EMPEQ Fast Site Survey™ App.
adjunct faculty. X
\ 4

A4 Aug: (Admin) Transfer of site data Oct: Client Authorization to Proceed
June-July: MEP transition from and monitoring plan from SYEP to with development of Investment-
SEYP to Work-Learning-Service Work-Learning-Service cohort, grade, turnkey, Energy Services
Adjunct Faculty. including Benchmark Report. Contract (ESCO) proposal.

l Energy Services Contract (ESCO) Proposal Development l
Nov: MEP site review supported Dec-Apr: IACs site review with MEP Feb-May: Work-Learning-Service interns
by Work-Learning-Service .| and client representative. IACs o and MEPs develop investment-grade
interns with integration of IACs “1 complete Assessment Service and 7| proposals for bid by full-service,
program. submit Recommendations for performance-based energy services
energy efficiency measures. contractors. (Final intern Work-Product.)

l Energy Services Contract Bidding l

Mar-Jun: (Admin) Institute review | July: Submitted bid review by N July-Aug: Clients and Institute
L »

and approval of bid documents and
open, competitive bidding on
energy services projects by qualified
energy services contractors (ESCO).

Work-Learning-Service-Interns and
MEPs.

|

Project Finance & Construction

approve bids and award energy
services contract to qualified energy
services contractors (ESCOs).

Sept: (Admin) Institute packages the awarded energy >»| Oct-Dec: MEPs and Work-Service-Learning
services contracts (ESCOs) for financing under interns serve as “Clerk-of-the-Works”
Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (C-PACE) through project construction and
in collaboration with Institute climate finance commissioning phases.
Consortium Partners.

l Monitoring & Verification

Dec-Apr: ESCOs to
deliver final list of
installed measures and

Term of Energy Services Contract:
Work-Learning-Service interns report
conduct monthly reporting on energy

Y
Y

IAC students to conduct
a final photo verification
with EMPEQ Fast Site
Survey™ App to
document and confirm
installed measures.

savings and avoided energy costs
utilizing monitoring equipment and
simulation software and calculate
distributions of avoided energy costs
based upon the terms and conditions
energy services contract (ESCO).

Sept: (Admin) Institute collects fees and
distributes funds in accordance with the
terms and conditions of energy services
contracts (ESCOs). Institute revenue share
accrues to a scholarship fund to offset
student tuition and fees in accordance
with U.S. Department of Education Work-
College statutes under Title 34, Subtitle B,
Chapter VI, Part 675, Subpart C, §675.41

Source: Renewable Nations Institute (2022)

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 28 of 29



Contact Information

A\’ 4

RENEWABLE NATIONS
INSTITUTE

Allan E Baer

President, Chief Executive Officer
Global Challenge Award, Inc.
d.b.a. Renewable Nations Institute
39 Beacon Hill, Chelsea, VT 05038
Mobile: +1.802.279.7250
www.renewablenations.info

abaer@renewablenations.nyc

FOUNDATION

David Janes

President, Chief Executive Officer
OIST Foundation, Inc.

OIST Graduate University

1 Bridge Street, Suite 64, Irvington, NY 10533

Office: +1. 914) 296.4260
https://oistfoundation.org
info@oistfoundation.org

David Timmons

Executive Director

Fort Worden Public Development Authority
200 Battery Way

Port Townsend, WA 98368

Tel: 360-531-0066

www.fortworden.org
dtimmons@fortworden.org

Richard Lukens

Vice President, Managing Manager
Renewable Nations L3C

200 Battery Way

Port Townsend, WA 98368

Mobile: +1.415.717.7094
www.renewablenations.info
rick@unitedearth.net

FN: FWPDA_Preliminary_Assessment_Part_1_Concept_Narrative_20May2022.pdf

Page 29 of 29


http://www.renewablenations.info/
mailto:abaer@renewablenations.nyc
https://oistfoundation.org/
mailto:info@oistfoundation.org
http://www.fortworden.org/
mailto:dtimmons@fortworden.org
http://www.renewablenations.info/
mailto:rick@unitedearth.net

7&2‘?%@

== IORI JOWVS}ND*

SIRIC GATH

DRAFT Meeting Minutes

Board of Directors Special Meeting Agenda
Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development Authority (FWPDA)
Tuesday, April 12, 2022 | 5:30 p.m.

Via Zoom (Remote Meeting Per Governor Inslee’s Proclamation 20-28.15)

Public Access

Via computer:

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89060331863?pwd=RVVBMUhWU3JyQ3dpcONJemduSEJoUT09

Via phone:

+125 321 58782

Webinar ID: 890 6033 1863
Passcode: 726200

*9 to raise hand to speak

Action Summary

R/
0.0

Motion to approve Resolution 22-07 authorizing the Executive Director, with board chair approval, to
execute a lease agreement with Centrum to lease a portion of building 305 (first and second floors) of
Makers Square at the Fort Worden Campus. Unanimously approved.

Motion to approve Resolution 22-08 authorizing the Executive Director, with board chair approval, to
execute a lease agreement with Centrum to manage and operate buildings 205, 223, 255, 256, 259,
260, 261, 275, 310, 313, 315 (lower floor), and 356 at the Fort Worden campus. Unanimously
approved.

Motion to approve Resolution 22-09 authorizing the Executive Director, with board chair approval, to
execute a lease agreement with Northwind Art to lease building 308 and 324 of Makers Square
buildings at the Fort Worden campus. Unanimously approved.

Motion to approve Resolution 22-10 authorizing the Executive Director, with board chair approval,
to execute alease agreement with Northwind Art to manage and operate building 306 at the Fort
Worden campus. Unanimously approved.

Motion to approve Resolution 22-11 authorizing the Executive Director, with board chair approval, to
execute a lease agreement with Port Townsend School of Woodworking to manage and operate
buildings 304 and a portion of 315 (upper floor) at the Fort Worden campus. Unanimously
approved.

Special Meeting Agenda

L

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:34 p.m.

I

Roll Call


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89060331863?pwd=RVVBMUhWU3JyQ3dpc0NJemduSEJoUT09

PDA Board Members: Brad Mace, Celeste Tell, David King, Eva Weber, John Begley, Rodger Schmitt, Torie Brazitis

Partner Liaisons: Heron Scott, Libby Wennstrom
PDA Staff: David Timmons, Becky Wagner, Meriden Vitale

Il Public Comment on Special Meeting Topics Only

“As President of the Fort Worden Foundation Board of Directors, | have reviewed FWPDA Resolutions
22-07 and 22-09 related to Makers Square (Buildings 305, 308 & 324). The Resolutions and
accompanying lease-related documents appear to be consistent in all material respects with the Makers
Square Management Agreement between the Fort Worden Foundation and the Fort Worden Public
Development Authority, as executed in October, 2021. | commend David Timmons and John Begley,
representing the PDA; and Rob Birman, Walter Parsons and Sam Shoen, representing Centrum and the
Partner Alliance, for their diligence in helping Makers Square to realize its potential. Well done!”

Herb Cook

President

Fort Worden Foundation

IV. Action Items

David Timmons provided an overview of the lease agreements and the “watershed” moment that they represent
for both the PDA and partners. He explained separating the resolutions in order to provide for clarity and tracking
purposes. Chair David King highlighted that the 25-year leases demonstrate a commitment to the partners from
the PDA. Timmons also noted the hospitality amendment that Fort Worden Hospitality would like added to each
lease agreement.

The Board agreed to discuss resolutions together, rather than individually, since many of the terms are the same.
Discussion included the historical context that led to this approach; the process and potential for future lease
renewals; the specifics of class-D properties; and capital improvements. The Board also heard from partners
expressing their enthusiasm and support for the lease agreements.

1. Resolution 22-07*, Centrum Lease Terms Makers Square Building 305 (first and second floors)

Staff Presentation

Board Clarifying Questions

Board Discussion

Board Liaison Comments

Proposed action: Motion to approve Resolution 22-07 authorizing the Executive Director, with
board chair approval, to execute a lease agreement with Centrum to lease a portion of building
305 (first and second floors) of Makers Square at the Fort Worden Campus.

Sawp>

2. Resolution 22-08*, Centrum Lease Terms Buildings 205, 223, 255, 256, 259, 260, 261, 275, 310, 313,
315 (lower floor), and 356

Staff Presentation

Board Clarifying Questions

Board Discussion

Board Liaison Comments

Proposed action: Motion to approve Resolution 22-08 authorizing the Executive Director, with
board chair approval, to execute a lease agreement with Centrum to manage and operate
buildings 205, 223, 255, 256, 259, 260, 261, 275, 310, 313, 315 (lower floor), and 356 at the
Fort Worden campus.

Sawp»>




3. Resolution 22-09*, Northwind Art Lease Terms Makers Square Buildings 308 and 324

Staff Presentation

Board Clarifying Questions

Board Discussion

Board Liaison Comments

Proposed action: Motion to approve Resolution 22-09 authorizing the Executive Director, with
board chair approval, to execute a lease agreement with Northwind Art to lease building 308
and 324 of Makers Square buildings at the Fort Worden campus.

Sawpx>

4. Resolution 22-10*, Northwind Art Lease Terms Building 306

Staff Presentation

Board Clarifying Questions

Board Discussion

Board Liaison Comments

Proposed action: Motion to approve Resolution 22-10 authorizing the Executive Director, with
board chair approval, to execute a lease agreement with Northwind Art to manage and
operate building 306 at the Fort Worden campus.

5. Resolution 22-11%, Port Townsend School of Woodworking Lease Terms Buildings 304 and 315

(upper floor)

A. Staff Presentation

B. Board Clarifying Questions

C. Board Discussion

D. Board Liaison Comments
Proposed action: Motion to approve Resolution 22-11 authorizing the Executive Director, with
board chair approval, to execute a lease agreement with Port Townsend School of
Woodworking to manage and operate buildings 304 and a portion of 315 (upper floor) at the
Fort Worden campus.

Rodger Schmitt moved to vote on Resolution 22-07 and Resolution 22-09 as a bundle and accept them as
presented in the document, including the hospitality amendment. John Begley seconded. Unanimously approved.

Rodger Schmitt moved to vote on Resolution 22-08, Resolution 22-10, and Resolution 22-11 as a package and
accept them as presented in the document, including the hospitality amendment. Celeste Tell seconded.
Unanimously approved.

V.  Public Comment on Special Meeting Topics Only
No public comments at this time. Refer to the meeting chat for additional comments.

Heron Scott asked about next steps in the process; David Timmons said they include having the agreements
reviewed by attorneys and the individual partner boards. Timmons agreed to work with partners on a press
release.

VL  Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 6:43 p.m.

*Topic involves documents in agenda packet



7&2‘?7@447/

== IORI JOWVS}ND*

SIGRIC GA

DRAFT Meeting Minutes

Board Meeting Agenda
Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development Authority (FWPDA)
Tuesday, April 26, 2022 | 5:30 p.m.

Via Zoom (Remote Meeting Per Governor Inslee’s Proclamation 20-28.15)

Public Meeting Access

Via computer:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85109576409?pwd=dDNgb1FOanpMU2JMeHdFc1F1MGZLdz09

Via phone:

+1 253 215 8782

Webinar ID: 851 0957 6409
Passcode: 869791

*9 to raise hand to speak

Action Summary

0

>

Motion to approve the consent agenda. Unanimously approved.

Motion to approve Resolution 22-12 which hereby authorizes the Executive Director to make a
finding of the existence of an emergency. The Board directs the Executive Director to submit a
plan for implementing a time and materials basis budget to complete and mitigate the project.
The Board directs the Executive Director to submit a plan for approval within the next thirty days.
Unanimously approved.

Motion to authorize the Executive Director to enter into a Master Contract for Architectural
Services with Signal Architecture + Research, as well as waive the procurement selection process
for professional services. Unanimously approved.

Motion to approve Resolution 22-13 authorizing a change in authorized signatures for Infinex
Brokerage Account, removing Dave Robison and Diane Moody and adding David Timmons.
Unanimously approved.

Motion to approve Resolution 22-14 authorizing the Executive Director to sell/exchange such
surplus property to the Fort Worden Hospitality Corporation. Unanimously approved.

Meeting Agenda

Call to order (5:30)

The meeting was called to order at 5:33 p.m.

Roll Call

PDA Board: Brad Mace, Celeste Tell, David King, Eva Weber, John Begley, Rodger Schmitt, Torie Brazitis


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85109576409?pwd=dDNqb1FOanpMU2JMeHdFc1F1MGZLdz09

Partner Liaisons: Heron Scott, Libby Wennstrom
PDA Staff: David Timmons, Becky Wagner, Carolyn Zipeto, Meriden Vitale

1l. Reports

A. Finance Reports
Treasurer’s Report
March 16, 2022 Meeting Minutes*
Profit & Loss*
Balance Sheet*
Cash Flow Statement*
Bond Summary*
g. Budget2022*
John Begley reminded everyone that financial reports are still blended with hospitality.
Becky Wagner reviewed the above financial reports and answered questions from the board. Discussion
included the debt schedule, capital assets and liabilities, and the glamping project financials.

"D o0 T W

h. Internal Controls
David Timmons said he authorized a contract with Tara Dunford, CPA, who specializes in cash basis
accounting in governance. She will be a second set of eyes on annual report filing.

B. Executive Director’s Reports
a. Media Release, Lease agreements*
b. Hospitality and Partner advisory groups
c. Renewable Nations Institute event on April 29t
d. Building 203 Workshop*

Timmons spoke to the above topics. Hospitality and partner advisory groups are now meeting once a
week.

The Renewable Nations Institute held an event to announce the concept of the initiative that they have
begun at Fort Worden, in collaboration with the Japanese government, to work on climate change.

The Building 203 Workshop took place and allowed PDA and partners to view Signal Architecture’s
conceptual plans and get feedback. Option 3 was the preferred plan. Next step is to develop a project
estimate. Board members discussed developing a campus-wide approach to projects.

Iv. Public Comment
See attached letter for public comment.

V. Action Items (6:30)

1. Consent Agenda
a. Review the March 22, 2022 meeting minutes. *
b. Accounts payable 01/22,02/22, 03/22,04/22*
Proposed action: Approve the consent agenda.

Rodger Schmitt made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Eva Weber seconded. Unanimously
approved.



2. Glamping Project resolution
A. Staff presentation
B. Board clarifying questions
C. Board discussion
D. Board liaison comments

Shannon Ragonesi, attorney, explained the reasoning behind declaring an emergency in order to finish
the glamping project. Extensive discussion included the overall budget and feasibility of the project, the
consequences of declaring an emergency, the impact on debt services and bond obligations by either
finishing the project or choosing not to, the best way to phase project completion, and the current
condition of the glamping area, both infrastructure and landscape.

Proposed action: Motion to approve Resolution 22-12* authorizing the Executive Director
to make a finding of the existence of an emergency, which the PDA faces with regard to
immediate completion of the glamping project.

Celeste Tell made a motion to approve with the following language: “The PDA hereby authorizes the
Executive Director to make a finding of the existence of an emergency. The Board directs the Executive
Director to submit a plan for implementing a time and materials basis budget to complete and mitigate
the project. The Board directs the Executive Director to submit a plan for approval within the next thirty
days.” John Begley seconded. Unanimously approved.

3. Master Contract w/ Signal Architecture
A. Staff presentation (memo)*
B. Board clarifying questions
C. Board discussion
D. Board liaison comments

David Timmons recommended moving forward with the Master Contract, which operates as a
professional service agreement, based on qualifications, and with funding on a project by project basis.

Proposed action: Motion to authorize the Executive Director to enter into a Master Contract
for Architectural Services Agreement with Signal Architecture + Research, as well as waive
the procurement selection process for professional services.

Rodger Schmitt made a motion to approve. John Begley seconded. Unanimously approved.

4. Infinex Brokerage Account
A. Staff presentation
B. Board clarifying questions
C. Board discussion
D. Board liaison comments

David Timmons explained this process is needed to acquire statements and close down an old account.
Proposed action: Motion to approve Resolution 22-13* authorizing a change in authorized

signatures for Infinex Brokerage Account, removing Dave Robison and Diane Moody and
adding David Timmons.




Brad Mace made a motion to approve. Torie Brazitis seconded. Unanimously approved.

5. Asset and Liability Transfer from PDA to Hospitality
A. Staff presentation
B. Board clarifying questions
C. Board discussion
D. Board liaison comments

Fort Worden Hospitality needs this to complete their bank obligations for their startup loan. This creates
a transaction of nominal value between parties that meets the standard legal requirements. The Board
discussed sustainability, the disposal of e-waste, and a possible community garage sale.

Proposed action: Motion to approve Resolution 22-14* authorizing the Executive Director
to sell/exchange such surplus property to the Fort Worden Hospitality Corporation.

Brad Mace made a motion to approve. Rodger Schmitt seconded. Unanimously approved.

VI. Public Comment
No public comment. See chat for in-meeting remarks.

VII. Next Board Meeting
Tuesday, May 24, 2022 at 5:30 p.m.
VIII.  Adjourn (7:30)

The meeting was adjourned at 8:14 p.m.

*Topic involves documents in agenda packet



David Thielk, on behalf of Transportation Lab
360-301-6005

edavidt@agmail.com

April 3, 2022

Dear Fort Worden PDA Board of Directors,

Starting about 5 years ago, the traffic in Port Townsend soared dramatically. We know this
because many of us in the Transportation Lab are on our bicycles every day, and frequently ride
both during the day and at night. We ride 12 months a year, rain or shine. The number of close
calls we experience weekly, and sometimes daily, has gone up dramatically. We are bracing for
a difficult transportation experience this summer once again. The recent Jefferson County
Carbon Inventory (2018) indicates that Jefferson County roadways have significantly higher per
capita vehicle miles traveled (VMT) than elsewhere in the State of WA, and that in the years
between 2005 and 2018, the per capita MVT has increased here by 6.3%. The per capita VMT
for Jefferson County is now 10,665 miles. In contrast, for the State of Washington, the per
capita VMT is 8,272, a drop over the last 13 years. Clearly, Jefferson County is headed in the
wrong direction when it comes to over use of motor vehicles and carbon emissions.

Transportation sector makes up 66% of carbon emissions in Jefferson County (only 29%
nationally). The 2018 Jefferson County Carbon Inventory also suggests that only 21% of our
VMT is commuter traffic. Tourism is a major cause of the increases in Jefferson County’s
VMT and greenhouse gas emissions between the 2005 and 2018 carbon inventories.

Expanding and/or increasing the number of visitors to Fort Worden is an excellent outcome for
our community. But not if nearly every single visitor arriving at the Fort arrives by motor vehicle.
In response to our previous letter, Roger Schmidt suggests that expanding EV charging stations
is a step in the right direction. Actually, moving towards fleet transformation at this point is
insignificant and will not come close to meeting the current IPCC target dates. The best way to
reduce impact to the planet is to get people out of their cars and reduce vehicle miles traveled:

https://theconversation.com/why-reducing-carbon-emissions-from-cars-and-trucks-will-be-so-har
d-113230

Roger Scmidts also stated “Certainly, it's a daunting task” when it comes to addressing carbon
reduction. Indeed itis. And Mr. Schmidt also asks “Is there any kind of suggestion [from
Transportation Lab] for action on our part?” We have a number of suggestions.

1. Stop making it convenient and inexpensive for people who bring a car to Jefferson
County/Port Townsend for events at Fort Worden. The first step is to charge relatively
high rates for parking in any area related to one of the festivals or events at Fort Worden.

2. Require your partners who hold festivals and mega events (for example, Centrum,
Seattle Theater Group, etc.) to offer the option of transit tickets from each of the ferry
terminals (Bainbridge, Kingston, and Port Angeles) at the same time they purchase their


mailto:edavidt@gmail.com
https://theconversation.com/why-reducing-carbon-emissions-from-cars-and-trucks-will-be-so-hard-113230
https://theconversation.com/why-reducing-carbon-emissions-from-cars-and-trucks-will-be-so-hard-113230

event tickets. Give them the option to be able to get here, and back to the ferry without
their cars. Of course, this would require working with Jefferson Transit or some other
transit group and leasing extra buses specifically for these events.

3. Work with Jefferson Transit or other service to scale up transit services both locally
(shuttles) and regionally (from ferry terminals) for festivals and mega events.

4. Stop holding mega events like THING if suitable transportation cannot be planned
implemented. Given the urgency called for in the recent IPCC report, to plan and
implement these events without including a transportation plan that dramatically reduces
greenhouse gas emissions is no longer an option.

5. Require partners (including Seattle Theater Group) to lease pasture land out in the
county for parking and to run shuttles into town and to Fort Worden. Many communities
insist on this.

In short, we can, and you can, change culture by offering a combination of dis incentives to
drive, and incentives to seek out alternatives.

We know that the biggest policy changes that reduce greenhouse gasses are coming at
the municipal level. This is true all over the world. The changes that must occur to move
us away from car dependent systems have to occur at the local level if we're going to
change quickly enough to avert catastrophic outcomes. The Fort Worden PDA is an
example of a policy team that could make a difference. But, they won't if they behave as if the
dollars today from events from THING are more important than taking action to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions dramatically and immediately. We know that we face extreme
challenges with climate breakdown. But the duration and severity of those challenges for our
children and grandchildren are dependent upon agencies such as the Fort Worden PDA taking
the right steps today.

An alternative to dismissing our concerns is to take a leadership role to offer alternatives to
visitors and send the message that we in Jefferson County and the Fort Worden PDA care
about climate issues.

Transportation Lab would love to support you implementing these and other changes
described above! Please reach out to us. If not the FWPDA making a difference, then who?

Transportation Lab/A Local 20/20 Action Group
Gerald Braude

Richard Dandridge
Rebecca Kimball
Carol McCreary
David Thielk

Scott Walker



#‘

Ve

—— PORT TOWNSEND ——
A HISTORIC GATHERING PLACE

To: FWPDA Board of Directors

From: David Timmons, Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development
Authority (FWPDA) Executive Director

Date: May 23, 2022
Subject: Agenda Item - #2 Glamping
All,

| am recommending the Board rescind Resolution 22-12. My basis for this recommendation is
rooted in facts recently uncovered that no longer support an emergency declaration.

It appears from our recent exploration with a contractor regarding finishing the existing tents that
the cost will be around 200% of the estimate previously provided. Given this fact, it does not make
sense to commit to this project until a comprehensive assessment is completed.

Also, recently discovered documents validate the need to reconsider the economic viability of the
project as a whole. It appears there are several significant errors in the proforma. The total project

costs could require an additional $2m to complete as originally envisioned.

| am preparing a more comprehensive overview for your consideration at the June meeting that will
support an approach to terminate the project altogether.

Tonight, | am simply asking to rescind Resolution 22-12 and we will discuss the future of this project
at the June meeting.

200 Battery Way, Port Townsend, WA 98368



#‘

Ve

—— PORT TOWNSEND ——
A HISTORIC GATHERING PLACE

To: FWPDA Board of Directors

From: David Timmons, Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development
Authority (FWPDA) Executive Director

Date: May 23, 2022
Subject: Agenda Item - #3 Dave Peterson, PE
All,

| am recommending the Board authorize me to enter into a professional service contract with Dave
Peterson, PE. Under this service agreement Mr. Peterson will assist me with capital project related
matters.

The scope of work he will assist me with include but will not be limited to the following:

e Completion of the repairs to Makers Square water damage
e Completion of the Makers Square “Courtyard” improvements currently grant funded

e Development and execution of a priority list of capital preservation projects for submittal
and approval by Parks

e Assist in final implementation of recommendation on Glamping

This will be a limited term hourly contract with a value not to exceed $30,000. Mr. Peterson and |
still need to finalize the set hourly rate.

By way of background, Mr. Peterson served for over 20 years as the City Engineer and recently left

the city position. He and | have worked on many projects over the years and | feel very lucky to be
able to use his experience to assist me in carrying out these critical tasks.

200 Battery Way, Port Townsend, WA 98368



7MW

—— PORT TO\I\I\SE‘\ID —

A HISTORIC GATHERING

To: FWPDA Board of Directors

From: David Timmons, Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development
Authority (FWPDA) Executive Director

Date: May 23, 2022
Subject: Agenda Item - #4 Fort Worden Hospitality MOU
All,

At this time, | do not have the document to share with you. FWH is still finalizing terms on their
side.

| have recommended acceptance of terms that address the transfer of liabilities and assets, but
need to have the full picture from FWH to accurately report on this matter.

This may require we postpone action on this matter tomorrow night.

200 Battery Way, Port Townsend, WA 98368



#‘

Ve

—— PORT TOWNSEND ——
A HISTORIC GATHERING PLACE

To: FWPDA Board of Directors

From: David Timmons, Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development
Authority (FWPDA) Executive Director

Date: May 23, 2022
Subject: Agenda Item — #5 Executive Director’s Evaluation
All,

It's standard procedure for the Board to conduct an annual evaluation of the Executive Director.
The process generally will involve the Chair and Vice Chair to seek input from each Board member
separately and combine the feedback into a single review document.

| have been asked to prepare a format for this review by using templates from other similar
organizations. Once this is completed a copy for each Board member will be sent.

The process is also straight forward:

Each Board member receives and completes their evaluation form and submits a copy to the Chair.
The Chair and Vice Chair meet to review and consolidate the responses.

The final evaluation report is reviewed by the full Board in executive session at the June 28
meeting. Absent any objection, the Executive Director is invited into the Executive Session to meet
with the Board.

Following the Executive Session, absent any changes to the evaluation report, the Board reconvenes

in open session to formally adopt the evaluation. If changes are to be made that result from the
Executive Session, then in that case, the matter is repeated at the next special or regular meeting.

200 Battery Way, Port Townsend, WA 98368



#‘

Ve

—— PORT TOWNSEND ——
A HISTORIC GATHERING PLACE

To: FWPDA Board of Directors

From: David Timmons, Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Public Development
Authority (FWPDA) Executive Director

Date: May 23, 2022
Subject: Agenda Item — VIII. Executive Session
All,

| have been reviewing the Accountability Audit Report with our Attorneys. | am requesting we hold
an executive session to review with the Attorney issues that they believe could materialize as an
exposure of potential litigation that the Board should be aware of and consider as the fraud
criminal referral is still pending.

This will be for the Board members only, the Attorney and myself in attendance. No action is being
considered. Any action would require the matter to be listed as an action item in open session.
Hence no action is recommended. This is only to brief the Board on the potential of additional
litigation.

200 Battery Way, Port Townsend, WA 98368





